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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2016
As management of Uinta County School District No. 1, we offer readers of the Uinta County School District
No. 1’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of Uinta County
School District No. 1 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with the basic financial statements and notes to those statements.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The assets and deferred outflows of resources of Uinta County School District No. 1 exceeded its
liabilities and deferred inflows at the close of the most recent fiscal year by $48,136,049 (net
position). Of this amount, $(19,519,697) represents unrestricted net position. This negative net
position is largely due to the District’s net pension liability of $32,408,840.
For year end June 30, 2016, the Uinta County School District No. 1’s net position increased
$1,022,336 over the restated prior fiscal year, an increase of 2.2%. Management attributes most of
this increase due to a renovation project at one of the middle schools.
At the close of the current fiscal year, the Uinta County School District No. 1’s governmental funds
reported combined fund balances of $5,104,790, a decrease of $955,536 in comparison with the
prior year. The decrease was due to four actions: first, the District received local tax revenues in
the prior year that lowered the amount of state aid revenue in the current year; second, the District
underspent their Major Maintenance revenues in the 2016 fiscal year; third, the District had tax
shortfalls from corporate taxpayers due to tax revaluations and a bankruptcy; fourth, the District
spent on some capital equipment and personnel that was unanticipated at the beginning of the fiscal
year. Approximately 65.6% of the fund balance amount, $3,346,665, is available for spending at
the government’s discretion (unassigned fund balance).
At the end of the current fiscal year, unrestricted fund balance (the total of the committed, assigned,
and unassigned components of fund balance) for the general fund was $4,018,935 or 9.7% of the
total general fund expenditures.
The Uinta County School District No. 1’s total outstanding long-term obligations decreased 4.2%
or $109,010 during the current fiscal year.
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
This discussion and analysis provided here is intended to serve as an introduction to the Uinta County
School District No. 1’s basic financial statements. The Uinta County School District No. 1’s basic financial
statements consist of three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial
statements, and 3) the notes to financial statements. This report also includes supplementary information
intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements themselves.
Government-wide financial statements – The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with a broad overview of the Uinta County School District No. 1’s finances, in a manner
similar to a private-sector business.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
The statement of net position presents information on the Uinta County School District No.1’s assets,
liabilities, and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over
time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position
of Uinta County School District No. 1 is improving or deteriorating.
The statement of activities presents information showing how the Uinta County School District No.1’s net
position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus,
revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods
(e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).
Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of Uinta County School District
No. 1 that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues ( governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees
and charges (business-type activities). The business-type activities of Uinta County School District No. 1
are the food services fund and the employee benefit fund.
The government-wide financial statements include not only Uinta County School District No. 1 itself
(known as the primary government), but also legally separate Evanston Parks and Recreation District and
Uinta County School District No. 1 Board of Cooperative Education Services (BOCES) to which the Uinta
County School District No.1 is financially accountable. Financial information for these component units
is reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary government itself.
The government-wide financial statements begin on page 18 of this report.
The component unit financial statements begin on page 67.
Fund financial statements – A fund is a group of related accounts used to maintain control over segregated
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. Uinta County School District
No. 1, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate financial
compliance with legal requirements. All of the funds of Uinta County School District No. 1 can be divided
into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
Governmental funds – Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the governmentwide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows
of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. Such information may be useful in assessing a government’s near-term financial requirements.
Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, and
changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds
and governmental activities.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
Uinta County School District No. 1 maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the general fund; local, state and federal grants fund; the
capital construction fund; and major maintenance fund.
Uinta County School District No. 1 adopts an annual appropriated budget for its governmental and
proprietary funds. Budgetary comparison statements have been provided to demonstrate compliance with
these budgets.
The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on page 20 of this report.
Proprietary funds – Uinta County School District No. 1 maintains two proprietary funds, the food services
fund and the employee benefit fund. The food services fund accounts for food services provided to both
students and staff; the financial activities of the school lunch program are reported as a business-type
activity. The employee benefit fund provides a buffer to protect Uinta County School District No. 1 from
rising health insurance costs. Insurance costs pass from other funds through the employee benefit fund to
insurance providers.
The proprietary fund financial statements begin on page 24.
Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside
the government. Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide financial statements because the
resources of those funds are not available to support the Uinta County School District No. 1’s own
programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. Uinta
County School District No. 1 maintains three different types of fiduciary funds. The early retirement fund
is used to report resources held in trust for retirees who have received an offer to retire early in lieu of
contributions that can be used to pay for retiree health insurance or for individual medical savings accounts.
The student scholarship fund holds money donated to the school district to be used for higher education
scholarships. Most of the scholarships are foundational, meaning the award must be paid out of interest
income derived from investments. The student activity fund holds resources held in trust by Uinta County
School District No. 1 to pay for activities, clubs and associations, and extra costs that are additional to the
general curriculum. The student activity funds do not report a net position.
The fiduciary fund financial statements begin on page 27.
Notes to basic financial statements – The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire
a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 29 through 55 of this report.
Other information – In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents required supplementary information concerning the Uinta County School District No. 1’s budgets,
progress in funding its obligation to provide other post-employment benefits (OPEB) to its employees, and
schedules for its share of net pension liability and employer contributions. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 56 through 64 of this report.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued
GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS
As noted earlier, net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.
In the case of Uinta County School District No. 1, assets exceeded liabilities by $48,136,049, at the close
of the most recent fiscal year.
Uinta County School District No. 1’s Net Position
Governmental Activities

Current and
other assets
Capital
Assets
Deferred
outflows
Total Assets
Current
Liabilities
Noncurrent
Liabilities
Deferred
inflows
Total
Liabilities
Net Position
Invested in
capital assets,
net of related
debt
Restricted
Unrestricted
Total Net
Position

Business-type
Activities

Total School District

Total
Percent
Change
20152016

2016

2015

2016

2015

2016

2015

$12,824,224

$16,058,726

$1,049,120

$1,131,214

$13,873,344

$17,189,940

(19.3%)

67,543,406

63,709,792

454,105

464,591

67,997,511

64,174,383

6.0%

9,000,514

2,970,830

-

-

9,000,514

2,970,830

203.0%

89,368,144

82,739,348

1,503,225

1,595,805

90,871,369

84,335,153

7.8%

7,752,322

10,632,783

21,683

52,337

7,774,005

10,685,120

(27.2%)

34,147,821

26,525,526

34,815

-

34,182,636

26,525,526

28.9%

778,679

10,794

-

-

778,679

10,794

7,114.0%

42,678,822

37,169,103

56,498

52,337

42,735,320

37,221,440

14.8%

66,115,786

62,180,398

454,105

464,591

66,569,891

62,644,989

6.3%

1,085,855
(20,512,319)

105,712
(16,715,865)

992,622

1,078,877

1,085,855
(19,519,697)

105,712
(15,636,988)

927.2%
24.8%

$46,689,322

$45,570,245

$1,446,727

$1,543,468

$48,136,049

$47,113,713

2.2%

By far, the largest portion of the Uinta County School District No. 1’s net position, $66,569,891, reflects
its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles, and infrastructure),
less any related outstanding debt that was used to acquire those assets. Uinta County School District No. 1
uses these capital assets to provide a variety of services to its students and citizens. Accordingly, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Uinta County School District No. 1’s investment
in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources used to repay this debt
must be provided from other sources, since capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.
An additional portion of the Uinta County School District No. 1’s net position, $1,085,855 represents
resources that are subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of
$(19,519,697) represents the net amount of from all other positions. The amount is negative largely due to
the net pension liability of $32,408,840.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Uinta County School District No. 1
Net Position June 30, 2015 and 2016
$80,000,000
$70,000,000
$60,000,000
$50,000,000
$40,000,000

2015

$30,000,000

2016

$20,000,000
$10,000,000
$$(10,000,000)
$(20,000,000)

net invested in capital
assets

restricted

unrestricted

Total net position increased by $1,022,336 or a net position increase over the prior year of 2.2%. This
improvement in the District’s financial position came from its governmental activities and not from its
business-type activities, with net position increasing $1,119,077 in governmental activities and decreasing
$96,741 in business-type activities.
Governmental activities – During the current fiscal year, fund balance for governmental activities
decreased by $955,536, with much of the decrease, $1,935,680, coming from the General Fund. There was
also an increase in fund balance of $979,789 in major maintenance, which will be used in future major
maintenance projects.
Business-type activities – The net position for total business-type activities decreased $96,741. Food
services fund recorded a decrease of $18,155. Employee benefit fund recorded a decrease in net position
of $78,586.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
Uinta County School District No. 1’s Changes in Net Position
Business-type
Activities

Governmental Activities
2016

2015

2016

$163,405

$100,571

$561,048

3,611,841

3,625,107

1,791,514

Total
Percent
Change
2015-2016

Total Uinta County School
District No. 1

2015

2016

2015

$601,011

$724,453

$701,582

3.3%

822,248

781,108

4,434,089

4,406,215

0.6%

1,791,711

-

-

1,791,514

1,791,711

0.0%

10,495,479
40,547

10,891,639
27,529

3,846

1,788

10,495,479
44,393

10,891,639
29,317

(3.6%)
51.4%

1,408,356

1,408,664

-

-

1,408,356

1,408,664

0.0%

782,194

706,634

-

-

782,194

706,634

10.7%

27,004,028

27,721,451

-

-

27,004,028

27,721,451

(2.6%)

5,110,689

14,084,076

-

-

5,110,689

14,084,076

(63.7%)

-

-

(51,388)

6,352

(51,388)

6,352

(909.0%)

$50,408,053

$60,357,382

$1,335,754

$1,390,259

$51,743,807

$61,747,641

(16.2%)

$27,039,981

$25,770,961

$

-

$27,039,981

$25,770,961

4.9%

6,894,216

6,723,973

-

-

6,894,216

6,723,973

2.5%

5,684,272

4,969,840

-

-

5,684,272

4,969,840

14.4%

4,367,449
1,946,039

4,494,576
2,191,499

-

-

4,367,449
1,946,039

4,494,576
2,191,499

(2.8%)
(11.2%)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

3,002,790
$48,934,747

2,961,036
$47,111,885

1,803,473
$1,803,473

1,856,392
$1,856,392

3,002,790
1,803,473
$50,738,220

2,961,036
1,856,392
$48,968,277

1.4%
(2.9%)
3.6%

1,473,306

13,245,497

(467,719)

(466,133)

1,005,587

12,779,364

(92.1%)

(370,978)

(400,828)

370,978

400,828

-

-

-

16,749

6,564

-

-

16,749

6,564

155.2%

$1,119,077

$12,851,233

$ (96,741)

$ (65,305)

$1,022,336

$12,785,928

(92.0%)

$45,570,245

$34,642,368

$1,543,468

$1,050,064

$47,113,713

$35,692,432

32.0%

-

$ (1,923,356)

-

$558,709

-

$ (1,364,647)

(100.0%)

$46,689,322

$45,570,245

$1,446,727

$1,543,468

$48,136,049

$47,113,713

2.2%

Revenues
Program Revenues
Charges for
services
Operating grants
and contributions
Capital
construction grants
General Revenues
Property taxes
Interest
Other local
sources
Other county
sources
State aid,
unrestricted
State aid,
restricted
Employee
benefits, net
Total Revenues
Instruction
Pupil and Staff
services
Central, school
and business
administration
Maintenance
Transportation
Capital
construction
Depreciation
Food services
Total expenses
Excess
(deficiency) before
transfers
Transfers from (to)
other funds
Gain (loss) on
disposal of capital
assets
Change in net
position
Net position
beginning of year
Prior period
adjustment
Net position end
of year

$

-
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued
The following table presents the cost of eight major district activities: instruction, pupil and instructional
services, administration, maintenance, transportation, capital construction, interest on long-term debt, and
depreciation. The table also shows each activity’s net cost (total cost less intergovernmental aid provided
by other organizations, the State of Wyoming, or the federal government for specific programs). The net
cost shows the financial burden placed on the District’s taxpayers by each of these functions.
Expenses and Net Cost of Governmental Activities

2016
$27,039,981

2015
$25,770,961

Percentage
Change
2015-2016
4.9%

6,894,216

6,723,973

2.5%

5,916,087

5,799,478

2.0%

5,684,272
4,367,449
1,946,039

4,969,840
4,494,576
2,191,499

14.4%
(2.8%)
(11.2%)

5,621,495
4,367,449
1,946,039

4,903,120
4,494,576
2,191,499

14.7%
(2.8%)
(11.2%)

-

-

0.0%

(1,791,514)

(1,791,711)

0.0%

3,002,790
$48,934,747

2,961,036
$47,111,885

1.4%
3.9%

3,002,790
$43,367,987

2,961,036
$41,594,496

1.4%
4.3%

Total Cost of Services
Instruction
Pupil and Staff
Services
Administration
Maintenance
Transportation
Capital
Construction
Depreciation
Total

2016
$24,305,641

2015
$23,036,498

Percentage
Change
2015-2016
5.5%

Net Cost of Services

Total cost of governmental activities for 2015-2016 totaled $48,934,747. To calculate the net cost to the
District for governmental activities, monies received from federal and state governments and other school
districts that subsidized certain programs with tuition, grants and contributions totaling $5,566,760 are
deducted, bringing the total net cost of services to $43,367,987. The following chart graphically represents
the expenses and program revenues in comparison:
Expenses and Program Revenues – Governmental Activities
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$0

expenses
program revenues
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Sources of Revenue for Fiscal Year 2016
Other local
sources
3%

Interest
0%

Other county
sources
2%

Property taxes
20%
State aid,
unrestricted
52%

Capital
construction
3%
Operating grants
and
contributions
9%
Charges for
services
1%

State aid,
restricted
10%

Fund types presented: general, special revenue, capital projects, and proprietary.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
GOVERNMENT-WIDE OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued

Food services
4%

Expenses for Fiscal Year 2016

Depreciation
6%
Transportation
4%
Maintenance
11%
Administration,
technology &
infrastructure
8%

Instruction
55%

Pupil and staff
services
14%
Fund types presented: general, special revenue, capital projects, and proprietary.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
As noted earlier, Uinta County School District No. 1 uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements.
Governmental Funds – The focus of the Uinta County School District No. 1’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Uinta County School District’s financing requirements. In particular,
unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for
discretionary use as it represents the portion of fund balance which has not yet been limited to use for a
particular purpose by either an external party, Uinta County School District No. 1 itself, or a group or
individual that has been delegated authority to assign resources for use for particular purposes by the Uinta
County School District No. 1’s Board of Trustees.
At June 30, 2016, the Uinta County School District No. 1’s governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $5,104,790, a decrease of $955,536 in comparison with the prior year. Approximately 65.6%
of this amount ($3,346,665) constitutes unassigned fund balance, which is available for spending at the
government’s discretion. The remainder of the fund balance is either nonspendable, restricted, committed
or assigned to indicate that it is 1) not in a spendable form ($295,326), 2) restricted for particular purposes
($1,085,855), or 3) assigned for particular purposes ($376,944).

General Fund
Components of Fund Balance
June 30, 2015 and 2016
6,000,000
5,000,000
4,000,000
3,000,000

2015

2,000,000

2016

1,000,000
Unassigned

Assigned

Restricted

Nonspendable
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, Continued
The general fund is the chief operating fund of Uinta County School District No. 1. At the end of the
current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $3,346,665, while total fund balance
decreased to $4,018,935. As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unassigned fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund expenditures. Unassigned fund balance
represents 8.1% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance represents approximately 9.7%
of that same amount.

Other Governmental Funds
Components of Fund Balance
June 30, 2015 and 2016
1200000
1000000
800000
600000

2015

400000

2016

200000
0
Unassigned

Assigned

Committed

Restricted

Nonspendable

The fund balance of the Uinta County School District No. 1’s general fund decreased by $1,935,680 during
the current fiscal year.
The capital project fund, a major fund, had a slight increase of $355 due to interest. Major maintenance,
another major fund, increased $979,789.
Proprietary Funds – The Uinta County School District No. 1’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.
Unrestricted net position of the food services fund and the employee benefit fund at the end of the year was
$489,201 and $957,526, respectively. The food services fund decreased $18,155. The employee benefit
fund recorded a decrease in net position of $78,586.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, Continued
June 30, 2016
CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital assets – The Uinta County School District No. 1’s investment in capital assets for its governmental
and business-type activities as of June 30, 2016, amounts to $67,997,511 (net of accumulated depreciation).
This investment of capital assets includes land, buildings, machinery, equipment, and vehicles. The total
increase in capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation) for the current fiscal year was approximately
6.0%.
Uinta County School District No. 1’s Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)
Business-type
Activities

Governmental Activities
Buildings and
improvements
Equipment
Vehicles
Construction
in progress
Land
Total

2016

2015

$38,104,731

$39,390,860

3,516,597
1,195,216

2,413,031
978,038

20,160,081
4,566,781
$67,543,406

2016

Total School District
2016

2015

-

$38,104,731

$39,390,860

(3.3%)

454,105
-

464,591
-

3,970,702
1,195,216

2,877,622
978,038

38.0%
22.2%

16,361,082

-

-

20,160,081

16,361,082

23.2%

4,566,781
$63,709,792

$454,105

$464,591

4,566,781
$67,997,511

4,566,781
$64,174,383

0.0%
6.0%

$

2015

Total
Percentage
Change
2015-2016

-

$

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:
The acquisition of two buses, three Suburbans, a cargo van, and a Subaru Outback for $469,527.
Reroof at Aspen Elementary ($740,921 buildings and improvements).
The continuation of the renovation of Evanston Middle School ($2,234,617 construction in
progress).
The purchase and installation of a football scoreboard at Evanston High School ($332,055 buildings
and improvements).
Additional information on the Uinta County School District No. 1’s capital assets can be found on page 42
of this report.
Long-term Debt – At the end of the current fiscal year, Uinta County School District No. 1 had no general
obligation bonds outstanding. At the year-end, it had long-term obligations of $2,469,691 comprised of
capital lease obligations ($1,427,620) and accrued compensated absences ($1,042,071). The capital lease
obligations comprise bus and transportation leases, lease of equipment that increases utility efficiency, and
a technology lease. Accrued compensated absences include unused sick leave or vacation for employees.
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CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION, Continued
Uinta County School District No. 1 Outstanding Debt
Total School District
Other general obligation debt – capital lease
obligations
Other general obligation debt – accrued
compensated absences
Total

Total Percent
Change
2016-2015

2016

2015

$1,427,620

$1,529,394

(6.7%)

1,042,071

1,049,307

(0.7%)

$2,469,691

$2,578,701

(4.2%)

The Uinta County School District No. 1’s total debt decreased by $109,010 during the current fiscal year;
while there was a decrease in accrued absences due to employees taking leave in the current year, there was
also payments made on the technology, energy efficiency, and bus leases which lowered the total amount
obligated by Uinta County School District No. 1. Additional information on the Uinta County School
District No. 1’s long-term debt can be found on page 44 of this report.
Presently, Uinta County School District No. 1 is not rated by any of the rating agencies such as Fitch,
Moody’s, or S&P.
ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES
The following economic factors currently affect Uinta County School District No. 1 and were considered
in developing the 2015-2016 fiscal year budget.
The District’s adjusted Average Daily Membership that determines funding decreased the past
year: the Uinta County School District No. 1 had a 17.9 student decrease in ADM from the previous
year.
The State of Wyoming decreased the entitlement guarantee by an estimated $783,461 for the
upcoming fiscal year.
The District reduced staffing for the upcoming year through attrition and non-renewal of 5
elementary, 2 middle school, 3 high school and 1 administration position.
Uinta County School District No. 1 held steady in the medical cost ratio at approximately 78% of
claims to receipts in fiscal year 2015-2016. This resulted in a negative 2.8% decrease in health
insurance passed to the employees in the 2016-2017 fiscal year. The District’s health insurance
contribution rate remains the same as prior fiscal year
FACTORS BEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S FUTURE
In Wyoming, because of the State of Wyoming Block Grant Funding Model and the supporting legislation
behind it, revenues to K-12 public schools are guaranteed to a pre-calculated amount. That pre-calculated
amount is guaranteed by the State of Wyoming, regardless of how much or how little local taxes are
collected. When local taxes fail to meet the guaranteed amount, the State of Wyoming makes up the
shortfall from the School Foundation Account.
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Beginning in fiscal year 2003, the State Department of Audit began auditing the information submitted by
districts to the State at least once every three years. If the Department of Audit finds errors in the data
submitted by a district, a retroactive funding adjustment is made. There were no audit findings released by
the Department of Audit during the 2015-16 fiscal year.
CONTACTING THE DISTRICT’S FINANCIAL MANAGMENT
This financial report is designed to provide the District’s citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and
creditors with a general overview of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability
for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information,
contact the Business Office, Uinta County School District No. 1, 537 10 th Street, P.O. Box 6002, Evanston,
WY 82931.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Net Position - District-Wide
June 30, 2016

Governmental
Activities

Primary Government
Business-Type
Activities

Component
Units

Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Related party accounts receivable
Grants and contracts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Inventories
Internal balances, net

$

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
Total assets

3,879,936
6,416,799
107,233
327
1,256,754
855,505
295,326
12,344

$

35,048
924,726
1,943
29,091
70,656
(12,344)

$

3,914,984
7,341,525
109,176
327
1,285,845
855,505
365,982
-

$

1,447,272
2,296,605
39,196
117,618
98,273
6,360
-

12,824,224

1,049,120

13,873,344

4,005,324

67,543,406

454,105

67,997,511

857,573

80,367,630

1,503,225

81,870,855

4,862,897

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability

9,000,514

-

9,000,514

671,686

9,000,514

-

9,000,514

671,686

2,024,810
5,001,872
1,105
297,700
426,835

6,762
14,921
-

2,024,810
5,008,634
1,105
312,621
426,835

108,197
327
127,671
60,579
101,618
-

7,752,322

21,683

7,774,005

398,392

694,635
1,000,785
43,561
32,408,840

34,815
-

729,450
1,000,785
43,561
32,408,840

165,366
2,431,578

Total noncurrent liabilities

34,147,821

34,815

34,182,636

2,596,944

Total liabilities

41,900,143

56,498

41,956,641

2,995,336

Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Related party accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accrued compensated absences, due within one year
Capital lease obligations, due within one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, due after one year
Capital lease obligations, due after one year
Other postemployment benefit obligation, net
Net pension liability

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability
Total deferred inflows of resources

778,679

-

778,679

107,533

778,679

-

778,679

107,533

857,573

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Major maintenance projects
Construction projects
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

66,115,786

454,105

66,569,891

1,072,397
13,458
(20,512,319)

992,622

1,072,397
13,458
(19,519,697)

46,689,322

$

1,446,727

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

$

48,136,049

1,574,141
$

2,431,714
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Activities - District-Wide
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Primary Government
Functions/Programs

Governmental activities:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction

Expenses

$ 18,075,509
8,001,365
940,783
22,324
Total instruction

Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction
Depreciation
Administration, parks and recreation
Contractual services, cemetery
Contractual services, golf course
Instruction and administration
Support services
General administration
Contractual services, other
Building lease and operations

Charges for
Services

27,039,981

$

163,405
-

Operating Grants
Capital Grants
and Contributions and Contributions

$

163,405

2,497,255
73,680
-

$

2,570,935

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

Component
Units

Total

-

$ (17,912,104)
(5,504,110)
(867,103)
(22,324)

$ (17,912,104)
(5,504,110)
(867,103)
(22,324)

-

(24,305,641)

(24,305,641)

$

-

4,109,853
2,784,363
2,733,377
2,188,466
762,429
4,367,449
1,946,039
3,002,790
-

-

978,129
62,777
-

1,791,514
-

(4,109,853)
(1,806,234)
(2,670,600)
(2,188,466)
(762,429)
(4,367,449)
(1,946,039)
1,791,514
(3,002,790)
-

(4,109,853)
(1,806,234)
(2,670,600)
(2,188,466)
(762,429)
(4,367,449)
(1,946,039)
1,791,514
(3,002,790)
-

(127,991)
(375,713)
(31,622)
(81,400)
(228,807)
(530,969)
(256,375)
(225,304)
109,382

Total support services

21,894,766

-

1,040,906

1,791,514

(19,062,346)

(19,062,346)

(1,748,799)

Total governmental activities

48,934,747

163,405

3,611,841

1,791,514

(43,367,987)

(43,367,987)

(1,748,799)

1,803,473
6,573,214

561,048
6,521,826

822,248
-

Business-type activities:
Food services
Employee benefits
Total business-type activities

8,376,687

7,082,874

Total school district

$ 57,311,434

$ 7,246,279

-

822,248
$

4,434,089

$

$

1,791,514

General revenue:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State aid, restricted
State aid, unrestricted
Transfers from (to) other funds
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Total general revenue
Change in net position

Total net position, end of year

-

(471,565)

(471,565)

(471,565)

(43,839,552)

(1,748,799)

10,495,479
40,547
1,408,356
782,194
5,110,689
27,004,028
(370,978)
16,749

3,846
370,978
-

10,495,479
44,393
1,408,356
782,194
5,110,689
27,004,028
16,749

1,368,780
15,029
421
(116)

44,487,064

374,824

44,861,888

1,384,114

(96,741)

45,570,245
$

(420,177)
(51,388)

(43,367,987)

1,119,077

Total net position, beginning of year

(420,177)
(51,388)

46,689,322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

1,022,336

1,543,468
$

1,446,727

$

-

(364,685)

47,113,713

2,796,399

48,136,049

$ 2,431,714
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
June 30, 2016

Local,
State and
Federal
Funds

General
Fund

Capital
Construction
Fund

Major
Maintenance
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

ASSETS
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Related party accounts receivable
Grants and contracts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Inventories
Due from other funds

$

Total assets

2,213,294
5,229,662
107,233
327
118,554
855,505
295,326
1,269,396

$

1,001
1,138,200
-

$

1,658,858
1,849

$

6,783
1,187,137
-

3,879,936
6,416,799
107,233
327
1,256,754
855,505
295,326
1,271,245

$ 10,089,297

$

1,139,201

$

1,660,707

$ 1,193,920

$ 14,083,125

$

$

202
516
1,105
1,137,378

$

1,647,249
-

$

$

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Unearned revenue
Due to other funds
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred property taxes

377,359
5,001,356
5,378,715

1,139,201

1,647,249

121,523
121,523

2,024,810
5,001,872
1,105
1,258,901
8,286,688

691,647

-

-

-

691,647

691,647

-

-

-

691,647

295,326

-

-

-

295,326

-

13,458

53,098
323,846
3,346,665

-

-

Total fund balances

4,018,935

-

13,458

1,072,397

5,104,790

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances

$ 10,089,297

1,660,707

$ 1,193,920

$ 14,083,125

Total deferred inflows of resources
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Restricted for:
Major maintenance projects
Construction projects
Assigned to:
Instruction
Transportation services
Unassigned

-

$

1,139,201

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

1,072,397
-

1,072,397
13,458
53,098
323,846
3,346,665
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
with the Statement of Net Position - District-Wide
June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position - District-Wide
are different because:
Total fund balances - Governmental Funds
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds:
The cost of capital assets is
Accumulated depreciation is

$

5,104,790

$ 116,148,929
(48,605,523)
67,543,406

Property taxes receivable will be collected, but are not available soon enough
to pay for current period liabilities, and are therefore reported as unearned
property taxes in the governmental funds.
Noncurrent liabilities, including accrued compensated absences, capital
lease obligations, other postemployment benefit obligations, net, and the
the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities
in the governmental funds:
Accrued compensated absences, due within one year
Capital lease obligations, due within one year
Accrued compensated absences, due after one year
Capital lease obligations, due after one year
Other postemployment benefit obligation, net
Net pension liability

691,647

(297,700)
(426,835)
(694,635)
(1,000,785)
(43,561)
(32,408,840)
(34,872,356)

Deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources pertaining to the
net pension liability are not financial resources and therefore are not
reported as assets or liabilities in the governmental funds:
Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability
Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability

9,000,514
(778,679)
8,221,835

Total net position - District-Wide

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

$ 46,689,322
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Local,
State and
Federal
Funds

General
Fund
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

$

Total revenues

9,895,782
37,684
1,571,761
782,194
27,004,028
-

$

2,894
1,350,260
2,258,687

Capital
Construction
Fund

Major
Maintenance
Fund

Total
Governmental
Funds

$

$

$

180
5,110,689
-

3,611,841

17,078,671
5,090,793
819,099
19,013

2,500,315
73,680
-

-

-

17,078,671
7,591,108
892,779
19,013

23,007,576

2,573,995

-

-

25,581,571

4,100,889
1,634,296
2,735,217
1,971,624
729,648
4,493,811
2,590,656
-

978,129
62,777
-

5,110,514

814,408
-

4,100,889
2,612,425
2,797,994
1,971,624
729,648
5,308,219
2,590,656
5,110,514

Total support services

18,256,141

1,040,906

5,110,514

814,408

25,221,969

Total expenditures

41,263,717

3,614,901

5,110,514

814,408

50,803,540

355

979,789

Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

(1,972,268)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from sale of capital assets

(374,038)
393,877
16,749

Net change in fund balances
Total fund balances, beginning of year
Total fund balances, end of year

(3,060)

$

3,060
-

1,794,197

9,895,782
40,547
1,574,655
782,194
35,256,491
2,258,687

39,291,449

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction

5,110,869

2,683
1,791,514
-

-

-

355

979,789

5,954,615

-

13,103

92,608

$

-

$

13,458

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

(995,184)

-

(1,935,680)

4,018,935

49,808,356

$

1,072,397

(370,978)
393,877
16,749
(955,536)
6,060,326
$

5,104,790
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Governmental Funds with the Statement of Activities - District-Wide
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities - District-Wide
are different because:
Net change in fund balances - Governmental Funds

$

Capital outlays to purchase capital assets are reported as expenditures in governmental funds.
However, in the Statement of Activities - District-Wide, the cost of these assets is allocated
over their estimated useful lives as depreciation. This is the amount by which capital outlays,
$6,836,404, exceed depreciation, $3,002,790, during the current fiscal year.

3,833,614

Some property taxes will not be collected until several months after the District's fiscal year
end, and therefore will not be available to pay liabilities of the current period. Accordingly,
they are recorded as unearned property taxes in the governmental funds. They are however,
recorded as revenue in the Statement of Activities - District-Wide. The increase in unearned
property taxes on the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds during 2016 is an adjustment.

599,697

In the Statement of Activities - District-Wide, certain operating expenses (e.g., compensated
absences) and certain non-pension retirement benefits (e.g., other postemployment benefits)
are measured by the amount earned during the year. In the governmental funds, however,
expenditures for these items are measured by the amount of financial resources used
(i.e., the amount actually paid). In the current year, sick pay and non-pension retirement
benefits paid exceeded sick pay and non-pension retirement benefits earned by $8,329.

8,329

In the Statement of Activities - District-Wide, pension expense (revenue) is actuarially
determined and adjusted by amortization of deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources. In the governmental funds, however, pension expenditures are measured by the
amount of financial resources used (i.e., the amount of contributions actually paid). The
difference between contributions paid and the changes in the District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability and the related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of
resources is an adjustment.

(2,468,801)

Borrowings under capital leases are considered revenue in the governmental funds, but these
borrowings increase liabilities in the Statement of Net Position - District-Wide

(393,877)

Repayment of capital lease principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
repayment reduces noncurrent liabilities in the Statement of Net Position - District-Wide.
Change in net position - District-Wide

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

(955,536)

495,651
$

1,119,077
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2016

Food
Services
Fund

Employee
Benefit
Fund

Totals

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Inventories

$

Total current assets

1,589
1,943
29,091
70,656

$

103,279

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net

$

958,185

454,105
Total assets

33,459
924,726
-

35,048
924,726
1,943
29,091
70,656
1,061,464

-

454,105

557,384

958,185

1,515,569

6,762
14,921
11,685

659

6,762
14,921
12,344

33,368

659

34,027

34,815

-

34,815

68,183

659

68,842

454,105
35,096

957,526

454,105
992,622

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accrued payroll liabilities
Accrued compensated absences, due within one year
Due to other funds
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, due after one year
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

489,201

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

957,526

$

1,446,727
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Food
Services
Fund
Operating revenues:
School meal sales
District contributions

$
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Payroll costs
Health insurance premiums
Direct food costs
Supplies and materials
Other operating expenses
Depreciation
Total operating expenses
Operating loss

$

Total non-operating revenues
Loss before other financing sources
Other financing sources:
Transfers from (to) other funds
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning of year (Note 21)

$

561,048
6,521,826

6,521,826

7,082,874

1,063,378
590,712
61,377
44,427
43,579

6,573,214
-

1,063,378
6,573,214
590,712
61,377
44,427
43,579

1,803,473

6,573,214

8,376,687

(51,388)

(1,293,813)

735,737
86,511
3

3,843

735,737
86,511
3,846

822,251

3,843

826,094

(420,174)

(47,545)

(467,719)

402,019

(31,041)

370,978

(18,155)

(78,586)

(96,741)

507,356
$

6,521,826

Totals

561,048

(1,242,425)

Non-operating revenues:
Federal reimbursements
U.S. Department of Agriculture commodity contributions
Interest and investment earnings

Total net position, end of year

561,048
-

Employee
Benefit
Fund

489,201

1,036,112
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

957,526

1,543,468
$

1,446,727
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Food
Services
Fund
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from food service charges
Cash received from District contributions
Cash paid for employee services
Cash paid for health insurance premiums
Cash paid for direct food costs
Cash paid for other supplies and materials
Cash paid for other operating expenses

$

Net cash used by operating activities

Employee
Benefit
Fund

559,980
(1,059,217)
(495,982)
(61,377)
(44,427)

$

(1,101,023)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisitions of capital assets
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
Transfers from (to) other funds
Non-operating grants received
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Change in investments, net
Interest on investments

6,521,826
(6,573,066)
-

Totals
$

(51,240)

559,980
6,521,826
(1,059,217)
(6,573,066)
(495,982)
(61,377)
(44,427)
(1,152,263)

(33,093)

-

(33,093)

(33,093)

-

(33,093)

402,019
732,506

(31,041)
-

370,978
732,506

1,134,525

(31,041)

1,103,484

3

50,304
3,843

50,304
3,846

Net cash provided by investing activities

3

54,147

54,150

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

412

(28,134)

(27,722)

61,593

62,770

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided
(used) by operating activities:
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Commodities used
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Due from other funds
Accrued payroll liabilities
Accrued compensated absences
Due to other funds
Net cash used by operating activities

1,177
$

$

1,589

(1,242,425)

$

33,459

$

$

(51,388)

$

43,579
86,511

-

(1,068)
(10,336)
6,870
1,292
2,869
11,685
$

(1,101,023)

(51,240)

(1,293,813)

43,579
86,511

148
$

35,048

(1,068)
(10,336)
6,870
1,292
2,869
11,833
$

(1,152,263)

Non-cash, non-capital financing activities:
During the year, the District received $86,511 in food commodities
from the U.S. Department of Agriculture.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.
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Statement of Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2016

Early
Retirement
Fund

Student
Scholarship
Fund

Student
Activity
Funds

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable
Due from primary government

$

Total assets

35,673

$

6,196
175,241
-

$

5,659
520,332
177
-

181,437

$

526,168

-

550
-

$

43,383
482,785

-

550

$

526,168

35,673

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Due to student groups
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Held for benefit of others

$

35,673

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

180,887
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Changes in Net Position - Fiduciary Funds
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Early
Retirement
Fund
Contributions and donations:
Private

$
Total contributions and donations

Interest and investment earnings
Total additions
Payments and awards:
Early retirement payments
Payment to primary government
Scholarship awards
Total payments and awards
Change in net position

35,673

Student
Scholarship
Fund
$

35,673

4,000

112

750

35,785

4,750

26,940
30,036
-

5,305

56,976

5,305

(21,191)

Net position, beginning of year

(555)

56,864
Net position, end of year

$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the basic financial statements.

4,000

35,673

181,442
$

180,887
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2016
1.

Organization

Uinta County School District No. 1 (“the District”) is governed by an elected nine-member Board of
Trustees (“the Board”), which has governance responsibilities over all activities related to public
elementary and secondary school education in an area that roughly comprises the western half of Uinta
County, Wyoming. The District receives funding from local, county, state and federal government sources
and must comply with the requirements of these funding entities. The District is not included in any other
governmental “reporting entity” as defined in Section 2100, Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, since board members are elected by the public; have decision-making
authority; have the power to designate management; have the responsibility to significantly influence
operations; and have primary accountability for fiscal matters.
The Evanston Parks and Recreation District (“the Parks and Recreation District”) and the Uinta County
School District No. 1 Board of Cooperative Educational Services (“the BOCES”) are considered to be
component units of the District because they are fiscally dependent on the District, or a majority of the
governing boards are appointed by the District’s Board. The Evanston Parks and Recreation District
provides recreation programs and services to the residents of Uinta County, Wyoming, that reside within
the District. The BOCES provides educational services, including vocational-technical education, college
credit courses and adult education. The component unit columns in the accompanying financial statements
include the financial data of the Parks and Recreation District and the BOCES. Both the BOCES and the
Parks and Recreation District issue stand-alone financial statements that are available by contacting
management of those organizations.
2.

District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments (GASB No. 34) defines the
financial reporting requirements and the reporting model for the annual financial reports of state and local
governments. The financial information required by GASB No. 34 includes:
Management’s Discussion and Analysis
The management’s discussion and analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an
analytical overview of the District’s financial activities in a narrative format. An analysis of the District’s
overall financial position and results of operations is included to assist users in assessing whether the
financial position has improved or deteriorated as a result of the year’s activities.
District-Wide Financial Statements
The district-wide financial statements, including the Statement of Net Position – District-Wide and the
Statement of Activities – District-Wide, report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the
District and its component units. These statements distinguish between the governmental and business-type
activities of the District. Governmental transactions are generally financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or part by fees charged to external parties.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
June 30, 2016
2.

District-Wide and Fund Financial Statements, Continued

District-Wide Financial Statements, Continued
In general, the effect of interfund transactions has been eliminated from the district-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this general rule are transactions between the District’s governmental and
business-type activities. Elimination of these transactions would distort the direct costs and program
revenues reported for the various functions concerned.
The Statement of Activities – District-Wide presents a comparison between direct expenses and program
revenues for each function of the District’s governmental activities and the different business-type activities
of the District. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function. The
District does not charge indirect expenses to programs or functions. Program revenues include (a) fees,
fines, and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues.
Depreciation is presented in its entirety in the Statement of Activities – District-Wide. No depreciation has
been allocated to any of the District’s specific functions.
Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide information on the District’s funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category – Governmental, Proprietary and Fiduciary – are presented.
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and business-type funds, each
displayed separately.
Budgetary Comparison Schedules
The budgetary comparison schedules are presented as required supplementary information to demonstrate
whether resources were obtained and used in accordance with the District’s legally adopted budgets (see
Note 4). The District may revise the original budgets over the course of the year for various reasons. Under
the reporting model prescribed by GASB No. 34, budgetary information continues to be provided, and
includes comparisons of the District’s original adopted budgets to the final budgets and actual results.
3.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The district-wide, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis,
revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value
without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property taxes, grants, entitlements
and donations. Revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.
Revenue from grants, entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility
requirements stipulated by the provider have been met and satisfied.
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3.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation, Continued

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be measurable when the amount of the transaction
can be determined, and available when they are collected within the current period or soon enough thereafter
to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if
they are collected within 60 days after the end of the fiscal year. Expenditures are recorded when the related
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general long-term debt, claims, judgments,
compensated absences and early retirement liabilities, which are recognized to the extent they have
matured. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds
from long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
The District reports the following governmental funds:
General Fund: The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District and is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Most instructional and
support service programs of the District are accounted for in the General Fund. The revenue of the fund
consists primarily of local property taxes and federal and state funds. This is a budgeted fund, and any
unassigned or unencumbered fund balances are considered as resources available for use.
Local, State and Federal Grants Funds: The Local, State and Federal Grants Funds are used to account for
funds received from federal and state grants that have restrictions on their use. These are budgeted funds,
and any unassigned or unencumbered fund balances are considered as resources available for use.
Capital Construction Fund: The Capital Construction Fund is used to account for the financial resources
accumulated and payments made for the acquisition and improvement of sites; construction and remodel
of facilities; and procurement of equipment, textbooks and supplies necessary for providing educational
programs to the District’s students. The revenue of the fund consists primarily of capital construction funds
from the Wyoming School Facilities Department. This is a budgeted fund, and any fund balances are
considered as resources available for use (see Note 16).
Major Maintenance Fund: The Major Maintenance Fund is used to account for funds received from the
Wyoming School Facilities Department that are specifically designated for major maintenance
expenditures. This is a budgeted fund, and any fund balances are considered as resources available for use
(see Note 16).
The District reports the following proprietary funds:
Food Services Fund: The Food Services Fund is used to account for the District’s school breakfast and
lunch programs, which make sales to students and other individuals. Operating revenues are comprised of
user charges. Non-operating revenues are comprised of grant revenues, interest income and transfers from
other funds. This is a budgeted fund, and any unrestricted net position is considered as resources available
for use.
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3.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation, Continued

Employee Benefit Fund: The Employee Benefit Fund is used to account for certain health insurance
coverage provided to the District’s employees. Operating revenues are comprised of charges to the District
for certain employee health insurance coverage. Non-operating revenues are comprised of interest income.
This is a budgeted fund, and any unrestricted net position is considered as resources available for use.
The District reports the following fiduciary funds:
Early Retirement Fund: The Early Retirement Fund is accounted for as a private-purpose trust. It reports
resources held and administered in a fiduciary capacity on behalf of employees who have taken early
retirement. This fund does not include revenues and expenditures for general operations of the District.
Student Scholarship Fund: The Student Scholarship Fund is a private-purpose trust fund used to account
for funds donated for scholarships awarded to graduating seniors who will be attending college, vocational
or technical training schools. This fund does not include revenues and expenditures for general operations
of the District.
Student Activity Funds: The Student Activity Funds are agency funds used to account for activities of
student groups and other types of activities requiring clearing accounts. These funds have no net position;
assets are equal to liabilities and do not include revenues and expenditures for general operations of the
District.
4.

Budgetary Information

Under Wyoming law, the District’s approved budgets establish maximum legal authorization for
expenditures during the fiscal year. The budgets are prepared on the modified accrual basis. Unused
appropriations lapse at the end of the year, unless the Board extends existing encumbrances beyond yearend.
On or before May 15 of each year, the District’s administration submits to the Board a preliminary operating
budget for each of the budgeted funds for the fiscal year commencing July 1. The operating budgets include
proposed expenditures detailed at the functional level and the means of financing them.
On the third Wednesday of July, the Board conducts its annual budget hearing and budgets are legally
adopted through the passage of an appropriation by the Board.
Actual expenditures and operating transfers out may not legally exceed budget appropriations at the
functional level. The legal level of budgetary control is the functional level at which the Board must approve
any over-expenditures of appropriations or transfers of appropriated amounts. The functional levels are
Instruction, Instructional Support, General Support, Non-Instructional Support Services, Facility
Acquisition and Construction Services and Fund Transfers.
The School Board may amend the budget after holding a budget hearing at any time during the year. The
administration may transfer between budgetary line items within a function without Board approval. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the budget was amended to reflect revised revenue and expense
estimates.
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5.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accounting Principles Generally Accepted in the United States of America
The financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to local government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles and standards. The District has adopted and
applied all applicable GASB pronouncements, including GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA
Pronouncements.
Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In June 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – An
Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27. The primary objective of GASB Statement No. 68 is to improve
accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This statement established
standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
and expenses. For defined benefit pension plans, this statement identified the methods and assumptions that
should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit payments to their actuarial present
value and attribute that present value to periods of employee service. Note disclosure and required
supplementary information about pensions are also addressed. GASB Statement No. 68 became effective
for the District beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015. Implementation required the restatement
of amounts not previously reported as liabilities, deferred outflows of resources and net position on the
District’s Statement of Net Position for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.
In November 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made
Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68. The objective of
Statement No. 71 is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No.
68. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government
employer or nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date
of the government’s beginning net pension liability. This Statement amends paragraph 137 of Statement
No. 68 to require that, at transition, a government recognize a beginning deferred outflow of resources for
its pension contributions, if any, made subsequent to the measurement date of the beginning net pension
liability. Statement No. 68, as amended, continues to require that beginning balances for other deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions be reported at transition only if
it is practical to determine all such amounts. The provisions of Statement No. 71 were required to be applied
simultaneously with the provisions of Statement No. 68.
In February 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. The
objective of Statement No. 72 is to address accounting and financial reporting issues related to fair value
measurements. The definition of fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. This
Statement provides guidance for determining a fair value measurement for financial reporting purposes.
This Statement also provides guidance for applying fair value to certain investments and disclosures related
to all fair value measurements. Statement No. 72 is effective for the District beginning in the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2016. Implementation did not have a material impact on the District’s financial results.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Recent Accounting Pronouncements, Continued
In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of Statement No. 75 is to improve accounting
and financial reporting by state and local governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions
(other postemployment benefits or OPEB). This Statement replaces the requirements of Statements No. 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, as
amended, and No. 57, OPEB Measurements by Agent Employers and Agent Multiple-Employer Plans, for
OPEB. Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension
Plans, establishes new accounting and financial reporting requirements for OPEB plans. This Statement
establishes standards for recognizing and measuring liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred
inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit OPEB, this Statement identifies the
methods and assumptions that are required to be used to project benefit payments, discount projected benefit
payments to their actuarial present value, and attribute that present value to periods of employee service.
Statement No. 75 will be effective for the District beginning in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2018. The
District is currently evaluating the financial statement impact of adopting this statement.
In December 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 79, Certain External Investment Pools and Pool
Participants. The objective of Statement No. 79 is to address accounting and financial reporting for certain
external investment pools and pool participants. Specifically, it establishes criteria for an external
investment pool to qualify for making the election to measure all of its investments at amortized cost for
financial reporting purposes. An external investment pool qualifies for that reporting if it meets all of the
applicable criteria established in this Statement. The specific criteria address (1) how the external
investment pool transacts with participants; (2) requirements for portfolio maturity, quality, diversification,
and liquidity; and (3) calculation and requirements of a shadow price. Significant noncompliance prevents
the external investment pool from measuring all of its investments at amortized cost for financial reporting
purposes. Professional judgment is required to determine if instances of noncompliance with the criteria
established by this Statement during the reporting period, individually or in the aggregate, were significant.
Statement No. 79 is effective for the District beginning in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.
Implementation did not have a material impact on the District’s financial results.
In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 82, Pension Issues – An Amendment of GASB Statements
No. 67, No. 68 and No. 73. The objective of this Statement is to address certain issues that have been raised
with respect to Statements No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions, and No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and
Related Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement No. 68, and amendments to certain
provisions of GASB Statements No. 67 and No. 68. Specifically, this Statement addresses issues regarding
(1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in required supplementary information, (2) the selection of
assumptions and the treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice for
financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made by employers to satisfy employee
(plan member) contribution requirements. Statement No. 82 is effective for the District beginning in the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Implementation required the retroactive restatement of amounts previously
reported as deferred outflows of resources on the District’s Statement of Net Position for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2015 (see Note 21).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The District considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased
to be cash equivalents.
Investments
The District invests in the State of Wyoming WYO-STAR fund (WYO-STAR) and the Wyoming
Government Investment Fund (WGIF). Deposits in the WYO-STAR and WGIF are stated at fair market
value, which approximates cost, and consist of local certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements and U.S.
government securities.
Property Taxes Receivable and Deferred Inflows
The Uinta County Treasurer is responsible for levying and collecting property taxes on behalf of the
District. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property on July 1 of each year. Property taxes are
levied on or about July 1, and are due in two installments. The first installment becomes due on
September 1, and is delinquent on November 10; the second installment becomes due on March 1, and is
delinquent on May 10.
Because the District is not a taxing entity, property taxes that are collected on the District’s behalf by the
County are recorded as receivables. In the governmental funds financial statements, property taxes are
recorded as revenue in the period for which the taxes are levied, to the extent that they are collected and
received by the District within 60 days after the financial statement date. Property taxes receivable which
are collectible subsequent to 60 days after the financial statement date are reflected in the fund financial
statements as deferred inflows of resources. In the district-wide financial statements, all property taxes
receivable, regardless of when they are collected, are recorded as revenue in the period for which the taxes
are levied.
Property Taxes Levied for Other Governments
The District is authorized by Wyoming State statutes to levy property taxes on behalf of the BOCES and
the Parks and Recreation District.
Inventories
Inventories, which consist primarily of instructional, transportation and food supplies, are reported at the
lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or net realizable value, or if donated, at fair value when received.
Inventories of governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased. Donated food commodities are reported in the Food Services Fund as revenue and expense when
received.
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Capital Assets
Capital assets are reported in the district-wide financial statements and the proprietary funds, and are
reported as expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements. Purchased or constructed capital
assets are reported at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation. If historical cost is unknown, estimated
historical cost is used. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of
donation, less accumulated depreciation. Costs of routine repairs and maintenance that do not improve or
extend the useful lives of the related assets are not capitalized. The District uses a capitalization threshold
of $5,000. When capital assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost and associated accumulated
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recorded in
the Statement of Activities – District-Wide, or the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund
Net Position, in the case of proprietary funds.
All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Depreciation is
calculated on capital assets using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of those assets, as
follows:

Buildings and improvements
General equipment
Transportation equipment

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities

10 to 50 years
5 to 20 years
8 years

-5 to 20 years
--

Fair Value Measurements
GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application, establishes a fair value hierarchy for
those assets and liabilities measured at fair value, that distinguishes between assumptions based on market
data (observable inputs) and the District’s own assumptions (unobservable inputs). The hierarchy consists
of: Level 1 – quoted market prices in active markets for identical instruments; Level 2 – inputs other than
Level 1 inputs that are observable; and Level 3 – unobservable inputs developed using estimates and
assumptions determined by the District.
At June 30, 2016, the assets or liabilities of the District that were measured at fair value on a recurring basis
are summarized as follows:
June 30, 2016
WYO-STAR Investments
WGIF Investments

Level 1
$4,949,290
3,087,808

Level 2
$
-

Level 3
$
-

Total
$4,949,290
3,087,808

Certain assets and liabilities are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the instruments are
not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis, but are subject to fair value adjustments only in certain
circumstances (for example, when there is evidence of impairment). The District had no assets or liabilities
measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during 2016.
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Accrued Liabilities and Long-Term Obligations
Liabilities shown on the governmental fund financial statements are those that have become due and
payable at the end of the fiscal year, which are expected to be paid during the upcoming fiscal year, and are
reported as an expenditure and fund liability of the governmental fund that will pay it. On the district-wide
financial statements, liabilities that become due and payable within one year after the financial statement
date are included in current liabilities, while liabilities that become due and payable after that time are
shown as noncurrent liabilities.
Compensated Absences
The District reports compensated absences in accordance with the provisions of GASB Statement No. 16,
Accounting for Compensated Absences. Compensated absences consist of accumulated sick and vacation
leave balances that are unpaid by the financial statement date.
All eligible employees of the District receive sick leave at the beginning of the year. In accordance with
GASB Statement No. 16, no liability is recorded for non-vesting accumulated rights to receive sick pay.
Under the terms of agreements with the local education association, twelve-month or full-year employees
earn vacation in amounts that vary based on tenure and classification. The District records a liability for
accumulated unused vacation for all eligible employees.
Accumulated sick leave and vacation that has become due and payable at the end of the fiscal year, which
is expected to be paid during the upcoming fiscal year, is reported as an expenditure and fund liability of
the governmental fund that will pay it. Accumulated sick leave and vacation that is expected to be utilized
by employees during the upcoming fiscal year is reported as a current obligation in the district-wide
financial statements. Accumulated sick leave and vacation leave that is not expected to be utilized by
employees during the upcoming fiscal year is reported as a noncurrent obligation in the district-wide
financial statements. Accumulated sick leave and vacation of proprietary funds, if any, is recorded as an
expense and liability of those funds as the benefits accrue to employees.
When an employee terminates employment with the District, unused sick leave is paid at the rate of $40
per day and accrued vacation is paid at the employee’s hourly rate then in effect.
Pensions
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Wyoming
Retirement System (“the Plan”) and additions to or deductions from the Plan’s fiduciary net position have
been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plan. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets plus deferred outflows, and liabilities plus deferred
inflows. Net position is comprised of the various net earnings from operating income, nonoperating
revenues and expenses, and capital contributions. Net position is classified in the following four
components.
Net investment in capital assets. This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.
Restricted net position. This component of net position consists of amounts subject to constraints imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
Designated net position. This component of net position consists of amounts that have been designated by
the Board of Trustees to be set aside for future capacity-related and capital improvements.
Unrestricted net position. This component of net position consists of amounts that do not meet the definition
of “net investment in capital assets,” “restricted” or “designated.”
Use of Restricted Resources
When expenditures qualify to be paid out of both restricted and unrestricted resources, it is the policy of
the District to use restricted resources first.
Fund Balances
GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions (GASB No.
54), defines the different types of fund balances that a governmental entity must use for financial reporting
purposes. GASB No. 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of the
following fund balance classifications (see Note 16):
Nonspendable: The portion of fund balance that is not expected to be converted to cash, such as inventories
and prepaid expenses, if any;
Restricted: The portion of fund balance that can be used only for the specific purposes stipulated by
constitution, external resource providers, or through enabling legislation;
Committed: The portion of fund balance that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by a
formal action of the District’s Board of Trustees (the District’s highest level of decision-making authority);
Assigned: The portion of fund balance that is intended to be used by the District for specific purposes, but
does not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed; and
Unassigned: The residual portion of fund balance for the District’s General Fund and includes all spendable
amounts not included in the other classifications.
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Encumbrances
Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the
expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation, is
employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund. Encumbrances outstanding
at fiscal year-end are reported as fund balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities. An
appropriation equal to the outstanding year-end encumbrance is made in the succeeding year. Unspent
appropriations lapse at year-end.
The District’s encumbrance policy is for fiscal year-end individual encumbrances exceeding $100,000 to
be considered significant encumbrances. All encumbrances outstanding at year-end are reported either as
committed fund balance or assigned fund balance in the General Fund, or as restricted fund balance in other
funds, if any (see Note 16). Significant encumbrances at June 30, 2016 consisted of a purchase order for
two buses, totaling $323,846.
Fund Balance Spending Policy
The District’s policy is to apply expenditures against nonspendable fund balance, restricted fund balance,
committed fund balance, assigned fund balance, and unassigned fund balance at the end of the fiscal year.
First, nonspendable fund balances are determined. Then, restricted fund balances for specific purposes are
determined (not including nonspendable amounts). Then, any remaining fund balance amounts for
governmental funds other than the General Fund are classified as restricted fund balance.
It is possible for governmental funds other than the General Fund to have negative unassigned fund balances
when non-spendable amounts plus restricted amounts exceed the positive fund balance.
Grant Revenue
The District receives financial assistance from governmental agencies in the form of grants, which are
accounted for in special revenue funds. Revenue is deemed earned and thus recognized when applicable
program expenditures are recorded. Funds received but not earned at June 30, 2016, if any, are recorded as
unearned grant revenue.
Operating and Non-Operating Revenues
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts
reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates and affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.
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Subsequent Events
The District has evaluated subsequent events through October 3, 2016, the date as of which these financial
statements were available to be issued. No material subsequent events have occurred since June 30, 2016
that required recognition or disclosure in these financial statements.
6.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District’s cash and cash equivalents consist of checking, savings and money market accounts at local
banks.
Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned
to it. Wyoming statute 9-4-820 requires the District to collateralize bank deposits that exceed amounts
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). In addition, for collateral held by a custodian
other than the Federal Reserve, an approved Joint Custody Receipt form must be properly executed to
perfect the District’s interest in collateral pledged by depository financial institutions. The District’s
business manager monitors cash account balances to see that sufficient collateral is pledged to the District.
At June 30, 2016, the District’s deposits were insured by the FDIC up to $250,000 at each bank.
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents on the District’s books at June 30, 2016 consists of and
appears in the financial statements as summarized below:
Cash and cash equivalents, Statement of Net Position – District-Wide
Cash and cash equivalents, Statement of Net Position – Fiduciary funds

$ 3,914,984
11,855

Carrying amount of bank deposits

$ 3,926,839

The District’s bank balances at June 30, 2016 totaled $4,011,975. The differences between the carrying
amount of cash and cash equivalents on the District’s books and the bank balances consisted of outstanding
checks and deposits not processed by the banks as of June 30, 2016.
A summary of the total insured and collateralized bank balances at June 30, 2016 is as follows:
Insured by FDIC
Collateralized with security held by pledging institution’s trust department
or correspondent bank under a joint custody receipt in the name of the
District and the financial institution.
Total bank balances

$

517,562

3,494,413
$ 4,011,975
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Investments

At June 30, 2016, the District had the following investments (including $695,573 of investments within
fiduciary funds). The District has not adopted a formal investment policy.
Investment

Maturities

WYO-STAR Local Government Investment Pool
Wyoming Government Investment Fund

230 days average
39 days average

Total investments

Fair Value
$ 4,949,290
3,087,808
$ 8,037,098

Interest Rate Risk The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities
as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Credit Risk State law limits investments to obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commercial paper, corporate
bonds and repurchase agreements. The District has no investment policy that would further limit its
investment choices. As of June 30, 2016, the District’s investment in the WYO-STAR Local Government
Investment Pool (WYO-STAR) and the Wyoming Government Investment Fund (WGIF) had a credit rating
of AAA and AAAm, respectively, by Standard and Poor’s Rating Services.
Concentration of Credit Risk The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one
issuer. More than five percent of the District’s investments are in the WYO-STAR and the WGIF. These
investments are approximately 61.6% and 38.4%, respectively, of the District’s total investments.
The WYO-STAR is overseen and managed by the State of Wyoming Treasurer’s Office. The WGIF is
overseen and managed by PFM Asset Management LLC, and the Distribution Agent is George K. Baum &
Company.
8.

Receivables

Receivables at June 30, 2016 consist of the following:
Grants and contracts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Delinquent property taxes receivable
Accounts receivable

$ 1,285,845
163,858
691,647
109,503

Total receivables

$ 2,250,853

Grants and contracts receivable consist of revenues earned by the District from various state or federal
grants and contracts that had not been received by the District as of June 30, 2016.
Property taxes receivable consist of property taxes levied and received within the first 60 days after
June 30, 2016 that relate to taxes levied for the current and prior fiscal years.
Delinquent property taxes receivable consist of property taxes levied for the current and prior fiscal years,
which were not collected as of June 30, 2016, or within 60 days after June 30, 2016. These amounts have
been offset by a deferred inflow of resources in the governmental fund financial statements.
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During the current and previous fiscal years, some of the District’s taxes were paid under protest to the
County Treasurer. This means that the property owners are disputing the assessed valuation of their
property, and therefore the amount of their property tax bill. When taxes are paid under protest, the
Treasurer must hold that money in a protest account until the protest is resolved with the State Board of
Equalization. Because the taxes were paid under protest, and the ultimate amount the District will receive
is still in question, no receivable has been recognized on the financial statements for those taxes.
9.

Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:
Governmental activities:
Balance
June 30,
2015
Buildings and
improvements
General equipment
Transportation
equipment

$ 79,080,829
5,651,822

Additions
$

142,201
1,513,836

Transfers
$

860,525
51,315

Balance
June 30,
2016

Disposals
$

(7,211)
(737,999)

$ 80,076,344
6,478,974

4,509,823

469,528

--

(112,602)

4,866,749

Capital assets in service
89,242,474
Accumulated depreciation (46,460,545)

2,125,565
(3,002,790)

911,840
--

(857,812)
857,812

91,422,067
(48,605,523)

42,781,929
4,566,781
16,361,082

(877,225)
-4,710,839

911,840
-(911,840)

Land
Construction in progress

$ 63,709,792

$ 3,833,614

$

--

$

----

42,816,544
4,566,781
20,160,081

--

$ 67,543,406

Business-type activities:
Balance
June 30,
2015
Equipment

$

Capital assets in service
Accumulated depreciation

981,093

Additions
$

981,093
(516,502)
$

464,591

33,093

Transfers
$

33,093
(43,579)
$

(10,486)

--

Disposals
$

--$

--

Balance
June 30,
2016

(26,949)

$

-26,949
$

--

987,237
987,237
(533,132)

$

454,105

Capital assets used by governmental activities included leased general and transportation equipment with a
cost of $5,016,895 and accumulated amortization of $2,274,106 at June 30, 2016 (see Note 13).
Depreciation expense for governmental funds has not been allocated to any of the District’s individual
functions. Rather, the District has included all depreciation related to governmental funds as a single line
item on the Statement of Activities – District-Wide. Depreciation expense for business-type activities is
shown on the proprietary funds financial statements.
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Interfund Receivables and Payables

Interfund receivables and payables arise primarily from one fund holding cash on behalf of another fund in
order to limit the number of bank accounts held by the District. Interfund receivables and payables may
also arise from one fund making payments on behalf of another fund to cover expenditures until grant
revenues are received. When grant or other funds are received, the paying fund is reimbursed for the
payments made on behalf of the receiving fund.
Interfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2016 are summarized as follows:
Due To

Due From

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Capital Construction Fund
(1)

Amount

Grants Fund (1)
Major Maintenance Fund
Employee Benefit Fund
Food Services Fund
Major Maintenance Fund

$ 1,137,378
119,674
659
11,685
1,849

Grants Fund refers to the Local, State and Federal Grants Fund.

11.

Interfund Transfers

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2016 are summarized as follows:

(1)

Transfer From

Transfer To

General Fund
General Fund
General Fund
Employee Benefit Fund

Food Services Fund
Employee Benefit Fund
Grants Fund (1)
General Fund

Reason

Amount

Fund operating shortfall
$ 402,019
Reimbursements for early retirements
35,000
Pay for FICA of certified teachers
3,060
Reimbursements for early retirements
66,041

Grants Fund refers to the Local, State and Federal Grants Fund.

12.

Short-Term Borrowings

The District had no short-term borrowings at June 30, 2016, nor were there any short-term borrowings or
repayments during 2016.
13.

Long-Term Obligations

As of June 30, 2016, the District’s long-term obligations consisted of accrued compensated absences
payable and capital lease obligations totaling $992,335 and $1,427,620, respectively. Of these amounts,
$297,700 and $426,835 are estimated to be current liabilities, and $694,635 and $1,000,785 are classified
as noncurrent liabilities in the Statement of Net Position – District-Wide.

43

Uinta County School District No. 1
Notes to Financial Statements, Continued
June 30, 2016
13.

Long-Term Obligations, Continued

Accrued Compensated Absences
No portion of accrued compensated absences was considered to be due and payable as of June 30, 2016.
Accordingly, the District has not recorded any amount of accrued compensated absences in the
governmental fund financial statements.
Capital Lease Obligations
The District leases certain general and transportation equipment under long-term agreements that represent
capital leases. Future minimum lease payments under capital lease obligations are as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

466,646
411,314
376,375
261,062

Total future minimum lease payments
Less amount representing interest

1,515,397
(87,777)

Present value of net minimum lease payments
Less amount due within one year

1,427,620
(426,835)

Amount due after one year

$ 1,000,785

Interest expense recorded associated with capital lease obligations totaled $53,310 for the year ended
June 30, 2016.
A summary of changes in long-term obligations of the District’s governmental activities for the year ended
June 30, 2016 is as follows:
Long-Term
Obligations
June 30,
2015
Governmental activities:
Capital lease obligations
Accrued compensated
absences
Business-type activities:
Accrued compensated
absences

Long-Term
Obligations
Paid

Long-Term
Obligations
June 30,
2016

393,877

$ (495,651)

$ 1,427,620

1,002,440

303,831

(313,936)

992,335

297,700

46,867

23,437

(20,568)

49,736

14,921

721,145

$ (830,155)

$ 2,469,691

$ 1,529,394

$ 2,578,701

Long-Term
Obligations
Incurred
$

$

Due
Within
One
Year
$

$

426,835

739,456
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The District offers medical, dental and vision insurance benefits to its retirees and their dependents, which
are accounted for as an Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB). The plans consist of the Altius Peak Plus
Plan (medical PPO) with prescription drug co-pays of $20/$40/$60, Delta Dental and VSP vision insurance.
The District does not explicitly contribute towards the cost of the premiums associated with these insurance
benefits for retirees.
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45 (GASB No. 45), Accounting and
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions established standards
for measurement, recognition and reporting of non-pension postemployment benefits, including the
medical, dental and vision insurance benefits offered to retirees of the District. Although the District does
not directly contribute towards the cost of these benefits for retirees, the ability for retirees to obtain
coverage at rates similar to active employees constitutes a significant economic benefit to the retirees.
GASB No. 45 requires that the District recognize the implicit cost of its retiree postemployment benefit
plan during the period of the employee’s active employment while the benefits are being earned. The
Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL) is required to be disclosed in order to accurately account
for the total future cost of postemployment benefits and the financial impact on the District.
Plan Description
Prior to July 1, 2009, employees who were eligible for full retirement from the Wyoming Retirement
System, had attained age 60, or met the requirements of the “rule of 85”, and had completed 20 years of
contractual service with the District, with 10 of those years being consecutive and immediately prior to
retirement, were eligible to retire and participate in the District’s healthcare plan by paying premiums equal
to those charged for the District’s active employees. Employees retiring July 1, 2009 and thereafter, who
meet the eligibility requirements described above, are required to pay 110% of the active premium until the
final 18 months of being enrolled in the plan, at which time the required payments are reduced to 102% of
the active premium. Spouses and eligible dependent children of retirees may also be covered at the retiree’s
expense. While the District does not directly contribute towards the cost of premiums for retirees, the ability
to obtain coverage at these rates constitutes a significant economic benefit to the retirees, called an “implicit
subsidy” under GASB No. 45. The inclusion of the retirees increases the District’s overall health insurance
rates.
Eligible employees may participate in the District’s health plans, up to age 65, by self-paying 110% or
102% of the premiums, as described above, using the following scale:
Years of Service
20
25
30+

Coverage
3.5 years
5.0 years
6.5 years
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Funding Policy
As required by GASB No. 45, an actuary determines the District’s Annual Required Contributions (ARC)
at least once every two fiscal years. The ARC are calculated in accordance with certain parameters, and
include (1) the Normal Cost for one year, and (2) a component for amortization of the total unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) over a period not to exceed 30 years.
GASB No. 45 does not require pre-funding of other postemployment benefits. Therefore, the District’s
funding policy is to continue to pay implicit subsidies for retirees as they become due. The District has
elected not to establish an irrevocable trust at this time. The Board of Trustees reserves the authority to
review and amend this funding policy from time to time, in order to ensure that the funding policy continues
to best suit the circumstances of the District.
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The following table shows the components of the District’s annual OPEB cost for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2016, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s net OPEB
obligation:
Annual required contributions
Interest on net OPEB obligation
Adjustment to annual required contributions

$

Annual OPEB cost
Contributions made

74,373
1,671
(2,416)
73,628
(71,852)

Increase in net OPEB obligation
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year

1,776
41,785

Net OPEB obligation, end of year

$

43,561

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net
OPEB obligation for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 are summarized as follows:
Fiscal
Year Ended
June 30, 2016
June 30, 2015
June 30, 2014

Annual
OPEB Cost
$

73,628
71,463
71,128

Actual
Contribution
$

71,852
102,752
89,929

Percentage of
Annual OPEB
Cost Contributed
97.59%
143.78%
126.43%

Net OPEB
Obligation
$

43,561
41,785
73,074
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Funded Status and Funding Progress
The funded status of the plan as of July 1, 2015, the date of the most recent actuarial valuation, was as
follows:

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
July 1, 2015

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Projected
Unit Credit
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)

$

$ 660,937

$ 660,937

--

Funded
Ratio
0.00%

Covered
Payroll
$ 24,038,379

UAAL as a
Percentage
of Covered
Payroll
2.75%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future
employment, mortality and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the Annual Required Contributions of the District are subject to continual revision as actual
results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The Schedule of
Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary information, provides multi-year trend information
that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the
actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (i.e., the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members
to that time. The methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term
volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term
perspective of the calculations.
The plan’s most recent actuarial valuation was performed as of July 1, 2015. In that valuation, the Projected
Unit Credit (PUC) Cost Method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a 4.0% investment rate of
return (net of administrative expenses), and an annual medical cost trend rate of 8.0% initially, reduced by
decrements to an ultimate rate of 5.0% after 3 years. The District’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability is
being amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis over 30 years. The remaining amortization period
as of June 30, 2016 was 30 years.
Several factors have caused the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) to change since the most recent prior
valuation date of July 1, 2013. These factors include, but are not limited to, the passage of time; increases
in healthcare premiums greater than anticipated; changes to more up-to-date mortality tables; changes in
actuarial methods and assumptions, including an increase to the initial healthcare trend rate from 6% to 8%;
and employee turnover being lower than anticipated.
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions, Continued
The estimated changes in the AAL from July 1, 2013 to July 1, 2015, the two most recent valuation dates,
are summarized as follows:

15.

Actuarial accrued liability as of July 1, 2013
Passage of time
Premium increases greater than anticipated
Change in mortality tables
Change in trend rates
Census and other changes

$ 723,809
(76,852)
5,770
1,447
25,193
(18,430)

Actuarial accrued liability as of July 1, 2015

$ 660,937

Wyoming Retirement System Defined Benefit Plan

Plan Description
All full-time and permanent part-time employees of the District participate in the State of Wyoming
Retirement System (“the Plan”), a multi-employer, cost-sharing public employee retirement plan. The Plan
is a defined benefit plan covering substantially all employees of the State, electing local municipalities, and
the Public School System of Wyoming. The cost to administer the Plan is financed through the contributions
and investment earnings of the Plan.
The Plan is governed by a Board of Trustees comprised of the State Treasurer, five trustees who are members
of the Plan and five “at-large” trustees who are not members of the Plan. With the exception of the State
Treasurer, Board members are appointed by the Governor and confirmed by the Wyoming Senate. The Board
employs an executive director to oversee day-to-day operations which includes a staff of approximately 40
employees.
Pension Benefits
The Plan allows for normal retirement after four years of service and attainment of age 60. Retirees can select
one of five options for receiving benefits. Early retirement is allowed, provided the employee has completed
four years of service and attained age 50, but results in a reduction of benefits based on the length of time
remaining to normal retirement age. Employees terminating prior to normal retirement can elect to withdraw
all employee contributions plus accumulated earnings through the date of their termination.
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Pension Benefits, Continued
The Plan offers two tiers of benefits. Tier 1 participants are those that have made contributions to the Plan
prior to September 1, 2012. Tier 1 participants vest after 48 months of service, with eligibility for full
retirement benefits upon attaining age 60 and meeting the “rule of 85,” which requires the participants age
and years of service to equal or exceed 85. Tier 1 benefits are calculated with a 2.125% multiplier rate for
the first 15 years of service with the remaining service years calculated with a 2.25% rate, using the highest
average salary for 36 continuous months. Tier 2 participants are those whose participation in the Plan and
contributions to the Plan began on or after September 1, 2012. Tier 2 participants vest after 48 months of
service, with eligibility for full retirement benefits upon attaining age 65 and meeting the “rule of 85,” which
requires the participants age and years of service to equal or exceed 85. Tier 2 benefits are calculated with a
2.00% multiplier rate for all years of service using the highest average salary for 60 continuous months.
Member and Employer Contributions
The Plan statutorily requires 16.62% of the participant’s salary to be contributed to the Plan; the District is
required to contribute a minimum of 8.37% of the employee’s salary. The District can, however, elect to
contribute more than the required amount. The District has elected to contribute 14.57% of the employee’s
salary.
Salaries and wages paid to employees covered by the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and
2014 were $25,109,437, $24,498,779 and $24,224,818, and the District’s total contributions, including both
employer and employee portions, totaled $4,172,472, $3,905,231 and $3,564,586, respectively. The
employee portion of the retirement contributions paid on behalf employees by the District for the years
ended June 30, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were $1,556,785, $1,519,253, and $1,746,426, respectively.
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions
At June 30, 2016, the District reported a liability of $32,408,840 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. It is the opinion of the District’s management that any liability in excess of the required
contributions would be paid for with general funds. Therefore, the entire liability is included within
governmental activities (see Note 21). The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2015,
and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of January 1, 2015. The District’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on the
District’s share of contributions to the Plan relative to the total contributions of all participating Plan
members, actuarially determined. At December 31, 2015, the District’s proportionate allocation was
1.391326797%.
For the year ended June 30, 2016, the District recognized net pension expense of $4,447,287, including
employer contributions of $1,978,486 paid during the Plan’s year ended December 31, 2015.
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Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense (Revenue), and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions, Continued
At June 30, 2016, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred Outflows
of Resources
Contributions made subsequent to the measurement date
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on investments
Differences between expected and actual experience
Change in proportionate share of the net pension liability

$ 1,064,076

Total

$ 9,000,514

Deferred Inflows
of Resources
$

7,936,438
---

--685,623
93,056

$

778,679

The amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from employer
contributions subsequent to the measurement date, in the amount of $1,064,076, will be recognized as
pension expense and a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2017. The amount
reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions made subsequent to the measurement
date for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was restated as a result of a clarification of GASB Statement
No. 68 (see Note 21).
The average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with pensions
through the Plan (active and inactive employees), which was determined at January 1, 2015, the beginning
of the measurement period ended December 31, 2015, is 3.9136 years.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense (revenue) as follows:
Year Ending June 30,
2017
2018
2019
2020

$

1,841,566
1,841,566
1,867,974
1,606,653

$

7,157,759

Actuarial Assumptions
Valuations are based on actuarial assumptions, the benefit formulas, and employee groups. Level
percentages of payroll normal costs are determined using the Entry Age Normal Cost Method. Under the
Entry Age Normal Cost Method, the actuarial present value of the projected benefits of each individual
included in the actuarial valuation is allocated as a level percentage of each year’s earnings of the individual
between entry age and assumed exit age. The Plan amortizes any unfunded actuarial accrued liability based
on a level percentage of payroll. The maximum amortization period for the Plan permitted under Wyoming
Code is 30 years.
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Actuarial Assumptions, Continued
The total pension liability in the July 1, 2015 actuarial valuation was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:
Inflation
Salary increases
Payroll growth rate
Investment rate of return

3.25%
4.25 – 6.00%, including inflation
4.25%
7.75%, net of investment expenses

Mortality rates were based on the RP – 2000 combined mortality table for healthy males or females as
appropriate with the following post-retirement mortality offsets:
• Males: set back 1 year with a 104% multiplier
• Females: no setback with a 90% multiplier
Mortality rates were based on the RP – 2000 combined mortality table for healthy males or females as
appropriate with the following pre-retirement mortality offsets:
• Males: set back 5 years with a 104% multiplier
• Females: set back 4 years with a 90% multiplier
The assumed rate of investment return was adopted by the Plan’s trustees after considering input from the
Plan’s investment consultant and actuary. Additional information about the assumed rate of investment
return was included in the Plan’s actuarial valuation report as of January 1, 2015. In addition, a five-year
experience study was completed as of December 31, 2011 that provided a detailed analysis regarding
recommendations on the long-term rates for inflation and the real rate of return. The assumed rate of
investment return of 7.75% (real return net of inflation of 4.50%) falls within a reasonable range of the
long-term rate of return.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using the building-block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected arithmetic returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These real rates of return are
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset as of
January 1, 2015 are summarized in the following table:
Asset Class
Cash
Fixed income
Equity
Marketable alternatives
Private markets
Total

Target
Allocation
2.50%
15.00%
59.00%
15.50%
8.00%

Long-Term Expected Real
Rate of Return
0.25%
0.87%
5.13%
4.75%
5.84%

100.00%
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Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.75%. Projected benefit payments are
required to be discounted to their actuarial present values using a single discount rate that reflects 1) a longterm expected rate of return on pension plan investments (to the extent that the Plan’s fiduciary net position
is projected to be sufficient to pay benefits using a 100-year analysis) and 2) a tax-exempt municipal bond
rate based on an index of 20-year general obligation bonds with an average AA credit rating (which is
published by the Federal Reserve) as of the measurement date (to the extent that the contributions for use
with the long-term expected rate of return are not met).
For purposes of this valuation, the expected rate of return on pension plan investments is 7.75% and the
municipal bond rate is 3.57%, which is based on the weekly rate closest to, but not later, than the
measurement date of the “state and local bonds” rate from the Federal Reserve statistical release (H.15).
Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.75%, as well as what the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point
higher than the current rate:

District’s proportionate share of
net pension liability

1% Decrease
(6.75%)

Current Rate
(7.75%)

1% Increase
(8.75%)

$ 46,527,629

$ 32,408,840

$ 20,472,651

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued
WRS Plan financial report.
A copy of the Plan’s financial statements may be obtained by contacting the Wyoming Retirement System
at 6101 Yellowstone Road, Suite 500, Cheyenne, WY 82002 or on the Plan website at
http://retirement.state.wy.us.
Payables to the Pension Plan
At June 30, 2016, the District reported payables of $420,292 to the defined benefit pension plan for legally
required employer contributions or employee contributions which had been withheld from employee wages
but not yet remitted to the Plan.
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16.

Fund Equity

GASB 54 requires the fund balance amounts to be properly reported within one of five categories (see
Note 5). Specific amounts reported as committed and assigned are summarized below:
Committed: The District’s Committed Fund Balance is fund balance reporting required by the District’s
Board of Trustees, either because of a Board policy or because of motions that passed at Board meetings.
At June 30, 2016, there were no portions of fund balance reported as committed as a result of Board policies
or as a result of motions passed at Board meetings.
Assigned: The District’s Assigned Fund Balance is fund balance reporting occurring by the Board
administration authority, as designated by the District’s superintendent, with consultation of the business
office. At June 30, 2016, amounts reported as Assigned Fund Balance represent encumbrances outstanding,
totaling $376,944 of non-restricted encumbrances, which is reported within the General Fund.
Restrictions of net position reported in the district-wide financial statements are established to either (1)
satisfy legal covenants that require a portion of the net position be segregated or (2) identify the portion of
the net position that is not appropriable for future expenditures. Specific restrictions on net position are
summarized below:
Major Maintenance Projects: The amount is restricted to segregate funds for capital outlay expenditures
which meet the Wyoming School Facilities Department’s definition of major maintenance.
Capital Construction Projects: The amount is restricted to segregate funds for capital outlay expenditures
which meet the Wyoming School Facilities Department’s definition of capital construction.
17.

Related Party Transactions

The BOCES is a component unit of the District (see Note 1). The District levies a two and one-half mill
property tax to assist in financing the operations of the BOCES. During 2016, the District recorded
expenditures of $80,000 as reimbursement to the BOCES for the cost of administering certain programs
related to the District. The District recognized revenue, totaling $1,850, for food and other supplies provided
to the BOCES. Also, the BOCES’ employees participate in the District’s medical insurance program.
During 2016, the District recognized a reduction of expenditures totaling $201,788 for reimbursement on
the BOCES’ contributions of monthly insurance premiums. At June 30, 2016, the BOCES owed $327 to
the District. Both the District and the BOCES provide various services on behalf of the other. These donated
services have not been reflected in the accompanying financial statements since management believes the
value of such services is not material.
18.

Risk Management

Insurance
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial insurance. Settlements
did not exceed coverage during 2016, or any of the past three years.
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18.

Risk Management, Continue

Litigation
The District is occasionally named as a defendant in lawsuits arising principally in the normal course of
operations. In the opinion of the District’s administration, the outcome of these lawsuits will not have a
materially adverse effect on the accompanying district-wide financial statements and, accordingly, no
provision for loss has been recorded. The District’s management and legal counsel are not aware of any
significant pending or threatened litigation at June 30, 2016.
19.

Contingent Liabilities

Grant Programs
The District receives significant financial assistance from federal and state governmental agencies in the
form of grants, which are governed by various rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. The
disbursement of funds received under these programs generally requires compliance with terms and
conditions specified in the grant agreements and is subject to audit by the District’s independent auditors
and other governmental auditors. Therefore, to the extent that the District has not complied with the terms
and conditions governing the grants, refunds of any money received may be required, and the collectability
of any related receivables at June 30, 2016 may be impaired. Based on prior experience, the District’s
administration believes such amounts, if any, would be immaterial.
School Foundation Program
The District’s funding for the General Fund is determined by the School Foundation Funding Model, which
was passed into law by the State of Wyoming (“State”) Legislature. Funding is determined based on a
variety of data submitted to the State by the District. In 2003, the State Department of Audit began
conducting audits of the information submitted by Districts to the State at least once every three years. If
the Department of Audit finds errors in the data submitted by the District, a retroactive funding adjustment
is made. If the District was over-funded, the District is required to refund the overpayment to the State.
20.

Economic Dependency

The District receives a large portion of its funding from the State of Wyoming. Any shortfall in property
taxes collected by the District is made up by the State. Therefore, the District is economically dependent
on the State for its continued operations.
21.

Prior Period Adjustment

GASB Statement No. 82 became effective for the District during 2016 (see Note 5). Implementation of
GASB Statement No. 82 impacted the District’s deferred outflows of resources and net position for the year
ended June 30, 2015. Contribution payments made by the District on behalf of employees in meeting the
statutorily required employee portion associated with the pension were included in deferred outflows of
resources during the year ended June 30, 2015. Under GASB Statement No. 82, contribution payments
made by the District on behalf of employees should be recognized as an expense in the period for which
the contribution is assessed.
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21.

Prior Period Adjustment

In addition, the financial statements as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015 allocated a portion of the
net pension liability and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources to business-type
activities, based on contributions made during the year. Management of the District has subsequently
determined that any liability in excess of the required contributions would be paid for with general funds.
Therefore, the entire net pension liability and related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
should be included within governmental activities. The effects of the retroactive implementation of GASB
Statement No. 82 and the reallocation of the net pension liability from business-type activities to
governmental activities requires a restatement of the financial statements as of and for the year ended
June 30, 2015, as follows:
As Previously
Reported

GASB 82

Reallocation

As
Restated

Statement of Net Position – District-Wide
Governmental Activities:
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to the net
pension liability
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to the net
pension liability
Net position

$ 4,216,467 $ (1,364,647) $
24,000,819
10,497
47,493,601

--(1,364,647)

119,010 $ 2,970,830
677,422

24,678,241

297
(558,709)

10,794
45,570,245

Business-type Activities:
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to the net
pension liability
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to the net
pension liability
Net position

$

119,010 $

-- $

(119,010) $

--

677,422

--

(677,422)

--

297
984,759

---

(297)
558,709

-1,543,468

119,010 $

-- $

(119,010) $

--

677,422

--

(677,422)

--

297
(51,353)

---

(297)
558,709

-507,356

Statement of Net Position – Proprietary Funds
Food Services Fund:
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred outflows related to the net
pension liability
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred inflows related to the net
pension liability
Net position

$
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

Actual
Modified
Accrual
Basis

(77,555)
(27,000)
(71,739)
-

$ (1,147,926)
7,684
254,683
263,890
-

39,291,449

(176,294)

(621,669)

17,167,885
5,103,693
840,750
19,013

17,078,671
5,090,793
819,099
19,013

(25,322)
(222,407)
2,879
(19,013)

89,214
12,900
21,651
-

22,867,478

23,131,341

23,007,576

(263,863)

123,765

3,882,865
1,572,421
2,506,315
1,998,424
734,752
4,333,561
2,401,491
-

4,167,149
1,652,017
2,774,634
2,010,738
769,083
4,518,418
2,762,627
-

4,100,889
1,634,296
2,735,217
1,971,624
729,648
4,493,811
2,590,656
-

(284,284)
(79,596)
(268,319)
(12,314)
(34,331)
(184,857)
(361,136)
-

66,260
17,721
39,417
39,114
39,435
24,607
171,971
-

Total support services

17,429,829

18,654,666

18,256,141

(1,224,837)

398,525

Total expenditures

40,297,307

41,786,007

41,263,717

(1,488,700)

522,290

(207,895)

(1,872,889)

(1,972,268)

(1,664,994)

(99,379)

(366,992)
-

(366,992)
472,633
17,349

(374,038)
393,877
16,749

(574,887)

(1,749,899)

(1,935,680)

5,954,615

5,954,615

5,954,615

$ 5,379,728

$ 4,204,716

$ 4,018,935

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction
Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds
Proceeds from capital leases
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Net change in fund balance
Total fund balance, beginning of year
Total fund balance, end of year

$ 11,043,708
30,000
1,394,633
545,304
27,075,767
-

$ 11,043,708
30,000
1,317,078
518,304
27,004,028
-

$ 9,895,782
37,684
1,571,761
782,194
27,004,028
-

40,089,412

39,913,118

17,142,563
4,881,286
843,629
-

Variances
Positive/(Negative)
Original
Final
to Final
to Actual
$

472,633
17,349

(7,046)
(78,756)
(600)

(1,175,012)

(185,781)

$ (1,175,012)

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor and Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedules.

$

(185,781)
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Actual
Modified
Accrual
Basis

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

$

Total revenues

1,333,130
3,507,855

$

1,710,752
3,326,884

$

2,894
1,350,260
2,258,687

Variances
Positive/(Negative)
Original
Final
to Final
to Actual
$

377,622
(180,971)

$

2,894
(360,492)
(1,068,197)

4,840,985

5,037,636

3,611,841

196,651

2,726,302
81,811
-

3,197,371
79,458
-

2,500,315
73,680
-

(471,069)
2,353
-

697,056
5,778
-

2,808,113

3,276,829

2,573,995

(468,716)

702,834

1,062,500
176,287
-

978,129
96,225
-

978,129
62,777
-

84,371
80,062
-

33,448
-

Total support services

1,238,787

1,074,354

1,040,906

164,433

33,448

Total expenditures

4,046,900

4,351,183

3,614,901

(304,283)

736,282

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

794,085

686,453

(107,632)

(689,513)

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction
Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds

-

Net change in fund balance

Total fund balance, end of year

(2,623)

794,085

Total fund balance, beginning of year

794,085

3,060

683,830

$

(3,060)

$

683,830

(2,623)

-

-

-

5,683

(110,255)

$

(1,425,795)

(683,830)

$

(110,255)

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor and Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedules.

$

(683,830)
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Actual
Modified
Accrual
Basis

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

$

Total revenues

8,229,494
-

$

8,229,494

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction
Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction

50
8,229,494
-

$

8,229,544

180
5,110,689
-

Variances
Positive/(Negative)
Original
Final
to Final
to Actual
$

5,110,869

50
-

$

50

130
(3,118,805)
(3,118,675)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,041,233

9,041,233

5,110,514

-

3,930,719

Total support services

9,041,233

9,041,233

5,110,514

-

3,930,719

Total expenditures

9,041,233

9,041,233

5,110,514

-

3,930,719

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

(811,739)

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds

(118,384)

Net change in fund balance
Total fund balance, beginning of year
Total fund balance, end of year

(811,689)

$

-

(930,123)

(811,689)

13,103

13,103

(917,020)

355

$

(798,586)

50

-

118,384

355

118,434

13,103
$

13,458

812,044
812,044

$

118,434

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor and Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedules.

$

812,044
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Actual
Modified
Accrual
Basis

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

$

Total revenues

500
1,802,610
-

$

1,803,110

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction
Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction

500
1,791,514
1,792,014

$

2,683
1,791,514
-

Variances
Positive/(Negative)
Original
Final
to Final
to Actual
$

1,794,197

(11,096)
-

$

2,183
-

(11,096)

2,183

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,895,713
-

1,884,122
-

814,408
-

11,591
-

1,069,714
-

Total support services

1,895,713

1,884,122

814,408

11,591

1,069,714

Total expenditures

1,895,713

1,884,122

814,408

11,591

1,069,714

979,789

495

1,071,897

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds
Net change in fund balance
Total fund balance, beginning of year
Total fund balance, end of year

$

(92,603)

(92,108)

-

-

(92,603)

(92,108)

979,789

92,608

92,608

92,608

500

$ 1,072,397

5

$

-

495
$

495

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor and Note to Budgetary Comparison Schedules.

1,071,897
$ 1,071,897
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1.

Basis of Presentation

The budgetary comparison schedules have been prepared on the modified accrual basis of accounting,
which is the same basis of accounting used in the governmental funds financial statements. The modified
accrual basis of accounting and the account groupings reflected in the governmental funds financial
statements differ from the presentation and account groupings required by Wyoming Statutes for Board of
Trustees’ budgetary control at the functional level, as described in Note 4 to the Financial Statements. There
were no instances in which actual expenditures exceeded budgeted expenditures at the functional levels
required by Wyoming Statutes.
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Schedule of Funding Progress - Other Postemployment Benefits
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date
July 1, 2007
July 1, 2009
July 1, 2011
July 1, 2013
July 1, 2015

Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)
(b)

Actuarial
Value of
Assets
(a)
$

-

$

691,703
568,045
630,160
723,809
660,937

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.

Unfunded
AAL
(UAAL)
( b-a )
$

691,703
568,045
630,160
723,809
660,937

Funded
Ratio
( a/b )
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%

Covered
Payroll
(c)
$ 21,765,950
23,426,111
23,273,412
23,200,369
24,038,379

UAAL as a
Percentage of
Covered
Payroll
( (b-a)/c )
3.18%
2.42%
2.71%
3.12%
2.75%
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability - WRS Public Employees Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years *

Fiscal Year

Employer's
Portion of NPL

2015
2016

1.398444465%
1.391326797%

Employer's
Proportionate
Share of NPL
(a)
$
$

24,678,241
32,408,840

Employer's
Covered
Employee Payroll
(b)
$
$

24,271,530
24,751,929

Employer's
NPL as a
Percentage of
Covered Payroll
( a/b )

Plan Net Position
as a Percentage
of Total Pension
Liability

101.68%
130.93%

79.08%
73.40%

* GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full
10-year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available.
Data reported is measured as of December 31, 2015.

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor and Notes to WRS Public Employees Pension Plan Schedules.

62

Uinta County School District No. 1
Schedule of Employer Contributions - WRS Public Employees Pension Plan
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Fiscal
Year
2014
2015
2016

Statutorily
Required
Contributions
(a)
$
1,724,807
1,866,807
2,101,660

Actual
Employer
Contributions
(b)
$
1,724,807
1,866,807
2,101,660

Contribution
Deficiency
(Excess)
(a-b)
$
-

Employer's
Covered
Employee
Payroll
(c)
$
24,224,818
24,498,779
25,109,437

Contributions
as a Percentage
of Covered
Employee Payroll
(b / c)
7.12%
7.62%
8.37%

* GASB Statement No. 68 requires ten years of information to be presented in this table. However, until a full
10-year trend is compiled, the District will present information for those years for which information is available.
Data reported is measured as of June 30, 2016.

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor and Notes to WRS Public Employees Pension Plan Schedules.
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Notes to WRS Public Employees Pension Plan Schedules
June 30, 2016
1.

Changes in Benefit Terms

There were no changes in benefit terms during the Plan year ended December 31, 2015.
2.

Changes in Composition of the Population

There were no changes in composition of the population during the Plan year ended December 31, 2015.
3.

Changes in Assumptions

There was a single change in actuarial assumptions during the Plan year ended December 31, 2015. The
range for salary increases decreased from 4.50 – 6.00% to 4.25 – 6.00%.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the Food Services Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Actual
Modified
Accrual
Basis

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

$

Total revenues

10
626,035
735,000

$

1,361,045

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction
Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction
Community support
Other support services
Principal and interest

10
626,035
860,000

$

1,486,045

-

Variances
Positive/(Negative)
Original
Final
to Final
to Actual

3
561,048
822,248

$

125,000

1,383,299

125,000

$

(7)
(64,987)
(37,752)
(102,746)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,742,893
-

1,955,000
-

1,803,473
-

(212,107)
-

151,527
-

Total support services

1,742,893

1,955,000

1,803,473

(212,107)

151,527

Total expenditures

1,742,893

1,955,000

1,803,473

(212,107)

151,527

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from other funds
Net change in fund balance
Total fund balance, beginning of year
Total fund balance, end of year

$

(381,848)

(468,955)

(420,174)

(87,107)

48,781

323,470

323,470

402,019

-

78,549

(58,378)

(145,485)

(18,155)

(87,107)

127,330

507,356

507,356

507,356

-

448,978

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.

$

361,871

$

489,201

$

(87,107)

$

127,330
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the Employee Benefit Fund
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Actual
Modified
Accrual
Basis

Budgeted Amounts
Original
Final
Revenues:
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources
Other county sources
State sources
Federal sources

$

Total revenues

2,500
6,842,960
-

$

6,845,460

Expenditures:
Instruction:
Regular instruction
Special instruction
Vocational instruction
Distance instruction
Total instruction
Support services:
Pupil services
Staff services
Central administration
School administration
Business administration
General maintenance
Transportation services
Capital construction
Community support
Principal and interest

2,500
6,842,960
-

$

6,845,460

3,843
6,521,826
-

Variances
Positive/(Negative)
Original
Final
to Final
to Actual
$

6,525,669

-

$

-

1,343
(321,134)
(319,791)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,842,451
-

6,842,451
-

6,573,214
-

-

269,237
-

Total support services

6,842,451

6,842,451

6,573,214

-

269,237

Total expenditures

6,842,451

6,842,451

6,573,214

-

269,237

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

3,009

3,009

(47,545)

-

(50,554)

(40,000)

(40,000)

(31,041)

-

8,959

(36,991)

(36,991)

(78,586)

-

(41,595)

-

-

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds
Net change in fund balance
Total fund balance, beginning of year
Total fund balance, end of year

1,036,112
$

999,121

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.

1,036,112
$

999,121

1,036,112
$

957,526

$

-

$

(41,595)
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Component Unit Information

Uinta County School District No. 1
Combining Statement of Net Position - Component Units (1)
June 30, 2016

Evanston Parks
and Recreation
District

Uinta County
School District No. 1
BOCES

Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable, net
Grants and contracts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Inventories

$

Total current assets

1,098,808
493,360
28,078
-

$

348,464
1,803,245
39,196
117,618
70,195
6,360

$

1,447,272
2,296,605
39,196
117,618
98,273
6,360

1,620,246

2,385,078

4,005,324

120,188

737,385

857,573

1,740,434

3,122,463

4,862,897

355,177

316,509

671,686

355,177

316,509

671,686

43,756
114,049
31,015
81,251

64,441
327
13,622
29,564
20,367

108,197
327
127,671
60,579
101,618

270,071

128,321

398,392

164,294
1,290,347

1,072
1,141,231

165,366
2,431,578

Total noncurrent liabilities

1,454,641

1,142,303

2,596,944

Total liabilities

1,724,712

1,270,624

2,995,336

48,994

58,539

107,533

48,994

58,539

107,533

120,188
201,717

737,385
1,372,424

857,573
1,574,141

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, net
Total assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows related to the net pension liability
Total deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Related party accounts payable
Accrued payroll liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accrued compensated absences, due within one year
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Accrued compensated absences, due after one year
Net pension liability

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to the net pension liability
Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted
Total net position

(1)

$

321,905

$

2,109,809

$

2,431,714

The classification of assets, liabilities and net position has been made by each component unit and is not
necessarily consistent with the District's classification nor comparable across component units.

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Combined Statement of Activities - Component Units
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Administration, parks and recreation
Contractual services, cemetery
Contractual services, golf course
Instruction and administration
Support services
Operations and maintenance
General administration
Contractual services, other
Building lease and operations
Total governmental activities

(1)

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Operating Grants
and Contributions

$

2,063,933
173,710
447,163
1,692,631
530,969
127,991
256,375
225,304
21,135

$

601,665
197,135
130,517

$

1,086,555
142,088
365,763
1,266,689
-

$

5,539,211

$

929,317

$

2,861,095

Governmental
Activities
$

(1,748,799)

General revenue:
Property taxes, general purposes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources

1,368,780
15,029
421
Total general revenue

1,384,230

Deficiency of revenue under expenses

(364,569)

Loss on disposal of capital assets

(116)

Change in net position

(364,685)

Total net position, beginning of year
Total net position, end of year

(1)

(375,713)
(31,622)
(81,400)
(228,807)
(530,969)
(127,991)
(256,375)
(225,304)
109,382

2,796,399
$

2,431,714

The classification of revenues and expenses between various categories of program revenues and
expenses and general revenues and expenses has been made by each component unit and is not
necessarily consistent with the District's classification nor comparable across component units.

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Activities - Evanston Parks and Recreation District
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Administration, parks and recreation
Contractual services, cemetery
Contractual services, golf course
Total governmental activities

(1)

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Operating Grants
and Contributions

$

2,063,933
173,710
447,163

$

601,665
-

$

1,086,555
142,088
365,763

$

2,684,806

$

601,665

$

1,594,406

Governmental
Activities
$

(488,735)

General revenue:
Property taxes, general purposes
Interest and investment earnings

391,080
7,825
Total general revenue

398,905

Change in net position

(89,830)

Total net position, beginning of year
Total net position, end of year

(1)

(375,713)
(31,622)
(81,400)

411,735
$

321,905

The classification of revenues and expenses between various categories of program revenues and
expenses and general revenues and expenses has been made by each component unit and is not
necessarily consistent with the District's classification nor comparable across component units.

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Statement of Activities - Uinta County School District No. 1 BOCES (1)
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Functions/Programs
Governmental activities:
Instruction and administration
Support services
Operations and maintenance
General administration
Contractual services, other
Building lease and operations
Total governmental activities

Charges for
Services

Expenses

Operating Grants
and Contributions

$

1,692,631
530,969
127,991
256,375
225,304
21,135

$

197,135
130,517

$

1,266,689
-

$

2,854,405

$

327,652

$

1,266,689

Governmental
Activities
$

(1,260,064)

General revenue:
Property taxes, general purposes
Interest and investment earnings
Other local sources

977,700
7,204
421
Total general revenue

985,325

Deficiency of revenues under expenses

(274,739)

Loss on disposal of capital assets

(116)

Change in net position

(274,855)

Total net position, beginning of year
Total net position, end of year

(1)

(228,807)
(530,969)
(127,991)
(256,375)
(225,304)
109,382

2,384,664
$

2,109,809

The classification of revenues and expenses between various categories of program revenues and
expenses and general revenues and expenses has been made by each component unit and is not
necessarily consistent with the District's classification nor comparable across component units.

See accompanying Report of Independent Auditor.
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Compliance Reports

Uinta County School District No. 1
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2016

Federal Grantor/
Pass-Through Grantor
Program Title

Federal
CFDA
Number

PassThrough
Grantor's
Number

U.S. Department of Education
Passed Through State
Department of Education:
Local Education Agencies Cluster:
Title I-A - Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title I-A - Grants to Local Educational Agencies
Title I-D - Grants to Local Education Agencies (Subpart 2)
Title I-D - Grants to Local Education Agencies (Subpart 2)

84.010
84.010
84.013
84.013

152101T1A00
162101T1A00
152101T1D200
162101T1D200

Expenditures

$

137,098
1,005,837
10,118
47,317
$

Special Education Cluster:
Title VI-B Special Education Grants to States
Title VI-B Special Education Grants to States
Title VI-B Special Education Preschool Grants

84.027
84.027
84.173

152101VIB00
162101VIB00
162101VIBP00

1,200,370

382,214
291,486
5,832
679,532

Carl Perkins - Vocational Education
Carl Perkins - Vocational Education

84.048
84.048

152101VEA00
162101VEA00

3,855
69,825
73,680

Title III - English Language Acquisition Grants
Title III - English Language Acquisition Grants

84.365
84.365

152101T3E00
162101T3E00

1,950
20,087
22,037

Title II-A Teacher Quality
Title II-A Teacher Quality

84.367
84.367

152101T2A00
162101T2A00

28,219
248,849
277,068

Total U.S. Department of Education
U.S. Department of Agriculture
Passed Through State Department of Education:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Non-Cash Assistance (Commodities):
National School Lunch Program
Cash Assistance:
School Breakfast Program
National School Lunch Program
Summer Food Service Program for Children

2,252,687

10.555

2101000

10.553
10.555
10.559

2101000
2101000
2101000

86,511
134,033
537,990
63,714
735,737

Total U.S. Department of Agriculture
National Endowment for the Humanities
Passed Through State Arts Council:
Promotion of the Arts - Partnership Agreements

822,248

45.025

2101000

6,000

Total National Endowment for the Humanities
Total Federal Financial Assistance

See accompanying Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

6,000
$

3,080,935
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Note to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year Ended June 30, 2016
1.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Uinta
County School District No. 1 and is presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The information
in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

74

Uinta County School District No. 1
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Section I – Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
The report of independent auditor expressed an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements of
Uinta County School District No. 1.
The audit of the financial statements of Uinta County School District No. 1 disclosed a significant
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting.
The significant deficiency in internal control over financial reporting was not considered to be a material
weakness.
The audit disclosed no compliance findings material to the financial statements of Uinta County School
District No. 1.
Federal Awards
The report of independent auditor expressed an unqualified opinion on compliance for major programs.
The audit identified no material weaknesses in internal control over major programs.
The audit disclosed no compliance findings that are required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform
Guidance.
Identification of Major Programs:
CFDA Number

Name of Federal Program

84.010
84.013

Local Education Agencies Cluster:
Title I-A – Grants to Local Education Agencies
Title I-D – Grants to Local Education Agencies (Subpart 2)

The dollar threshold used to distinguish type A and B programs was $750,000.
The auditee qualified as a low-risk auditee.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Section II – Financial Statement Findings
This section identifies the significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of non-compliance
related to the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards.
Finding 2016-001
Condition

The size of the District’s staff is not large enough to permit a complete segregation
of duties for an effective system of internal control over financial reporting.

Criteria

An effective system of internal control over financial reporting requires that closely
related duties be segregated.

Effect

The concentration of closely related duties and responsibilities by a small staff
makes it difficult to establish a complete system of automatic internal checks on
the accuracy and reliability of the accounting records.

Cause

The District’s staff is too small to allow a complete segregation of duties.

Recommendation

Although the District’s staff is not large enough to permit a complete segregation
of duties for an effective system of internal control over financial reporting, we
recommend that officials be aware that the condition does exist.

Management’s
Response

Management and the Board of Trustees are aware of this condition and have made
a conscious decision to accept the resulting degree of risk because of cost or other
considerations.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs, Continued
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Section III – Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
This section identifies the audit findings (significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and instances of
non-compliance, including questioned costs) related to federal awards that are required to be reported in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance.
There were no findings in the current year.
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Uinta County School District No. 1
Status of Prior Year Findings
Year Ended June 30, 2016
Finding 2015-001
Condition

The size of the District’s staff is not large enough to permit a complete segregation of duties
for an effective system of internal control over financial reporting.

Status

This condition still exists at June 30, 2016. See Finding 2016-001.

Finding 2015-002
Condition

During our testing of the District’s compliance with procurement, suspension and
debarment requirements, we noted that the District did not retain documentation to
substantiate that the required procurement procedures had occurred.

Status

This condition has been resolved and no longer exists at June 30, 2016.
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